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Jur Lompany was founded in 1371 With the CONSISTS OF 25 Ydlniaes, ICTUdimy Jolmt

rision to become the leader in the steel ventures, which strategically position us in
srocessing industry, and we are now one of the steel-producing and -consuming markets
he largest independent flat-rolled steel throughout the United States, Canada and
srocessors in North America. Our platform Mexico.
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We utilize the most advanced equipment (o appiications. [n 2006, we acquired Kasle Steel, -
produce high-quality steel products and which included three new joint ventures: RSDC,
specialize in meeting exact specifications for 4 50-50 joint venture with Marubeni-ltochu

customers in a variety of industries and end-use Steel America; Kasle Metal Processing, a 50-50
markets. Our broad geographic coverage allows  joint venture with Automatic Feed Company;

us to pravide our customers with efficient, and Delaco Kasle Pro-essing, a 49% joint
just-in-time delivery. venture with Delaco steel. These operations,
along with two wholly owned Kasle facilities,
In addition to our company operations, our five putus in a leadership position as North _
joint ventures (Mi-Tech Steel, Ferrelux Metals America’s largest independent supplier of
Company, RSOC of Michigan, Delaco Kasle automotive steel blanks.

Processing and Kasle Metal Processing) have
given us access 1o new markets, Mi-Tech Steel, a We, along with our jeint ventures, have

50-50 joint venture with Mitsui, began consistently increased our processes and o =
operations in 1987 and now has five facilities in capabilities, adding 22 facilities since our initial
the United States that provide high-volume, public offering in 1985. We intend to continue
value-added steel processing for the growing to pursue growth through acquisitions,
lapanese transptant markets and strategic expansion of existing facilities and capabilities,
domestic end markets. Ferrolux Metals, a 49% construction of new Jgreenfield facilities where
joint venture with Ferrous Metal Processing, is a we have identified a market opportunity, and
certified minority-owned business enterprise further development of our joint-venture
that operates a facility in Michigan specializing operations.
in steel processing for exposed automotive - “
Financial Highlights
in thoutands except per share data)
2006 2005
For the Year Ending September 30,
bales § 876,121 $ 957,739
[iross profit 58,542 86,002
Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net 5,971 4,937
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes 20,560 50,280
Net income 14,693 36,709
Diluted earnings per common share
from continuing operations 1.04 2.58
Diluted earnings per common share 1.12 2.80
Cash dividends par common share 0.30 0.25 e
Weighted average number :
of common shares outstanding - diluted 1317 13,098 !
At Year-End |
Total assets 5 513,617 $ 427,786 ]
Working capital 209,596 209,932 f
Property, plant and equipment, net 112,642 106,492
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 119,911 80,000
Shareholders' equity 269,760 257,290
Ehareholders’ equity per common share 20.66 19,90

13055 12,928
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Dear Shareholders:

I am proud to announce that
2006 marked our thirty-fifth year
in business and our thirty-fifth
consecutive year of profitability.
Starting in 1971 from one facility,
Steel Technologies has established
a leadership position in the flat-
rolled steel processing industry
through our twenty-three state-of-
the-art company-owned and joint-
venture facilities operating
throughout the United States,
Canada and Mexico. During
2006, we remained focused on our
commitment to build value for our
shareholders and establish the
most successful steel processing
platform in North America. At.
the same time, we navigated
changing industry dynamics and
met many challenges head on,
including weakness in the
automotive sector, our largest
customer group.

As 2006 began, we anticipated a
more stable pricing environment
than we experienced in 2005,
believing that excess market
inventories would finally be
depleted and that steel prices
would trend up. Unfortunately,
market psychology created a
competitive pricing environment,

caused by expectations of imports
flooding the market and
oversupply from domestic
producers. In actuality, steel prices
did increase slightly throughout
the first half of the year, but our
margins were compressed due to
pricing competition driven by
market expectations of lower

© prices. It is apparent further

consolidation in our segment of
the steel industry is needed to
create the discipline and
consistency recently shown by the
producers. We continue to believe
Steel Technologies will play a
leadership role in that
consolidation. By the middle of
our fiscal year, volumes at our U.S.
facilities suffered as we focused
our efforts to improve margins
and product mix. After reporting
a solid third quarter, the softening
automotive sector and overall
reduced flat-rolled consumption
continued to put pressure on our
operating performance for the
balance of the year.

Strategic Progress in 2006
Strategically, we continued to
focus on our four-pronged growth

plan: acquisitions, greenfield

A remarkable achievempntiih the stee essing industry.

growth, expansion of existing
operations, and further
development of our joint-venture
operations. During the year just
ended, we executed on all four
strategies. First, we successfully
completed a strategic acquisition
with Kasle Steel in the second half
of the year, greatly expanding our
toll processing business and
establishing Steel Technologies as
the leading exposed automotive *
blanker in North America.
Second, we broke ground on a
new facility in Juarez, Mexico,
which will begin operating in the
second calendar quarter of 2007.
Third, we made capital
investments in our existing
operations to increase our
efficiency and add production
capabilities. Finally, subsequent
to year's end, we announced the
expansion of our Mi-Tech Steel
joint venture through its
acquisition of a steel processing
operation and greenfield facility,
both located in Canada. This
four-pronged approach continues
to be the cornerstone of our
strategic plan to build on our
leadership position in the steel
processing markets.

|
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blanking for the U.S. automotive industry.

Steel Technologies has been a key
supplier to the U.5. automotive
industry since the Company's
formation in 1971, supplying a wide
range of value-added products and
offering complete supply chain
management. In 2006, we acquired
Kasle Steel Corporation, North
America's largest independent
supplier of automotive steel blanks.
With this acquisition and its joint-

" venture partners, we now have

blanking capabilities in eight plants
and have emerged as the leader in
exposed blanking for the industry.




; Financial Performance

Fiscal 2006 sales were §876
million, down approximately 9%
from the record $958 million in
fiscal 2005. Our reduced sales
levels were driven by a
combination of lower average
selling prices and lower tonnage
sold, down approximately 6% and
3%, respectively, versus last vear.
As a result, we reported net
income of $14.4 million, down
from a record $36.7 million in
2005. Clearly, the competitive

- pricing pressures in the first half
~ of the year, followed by slowing

consumption in our fourth
quarter, mainly in the automotive
sector, led to greatly reduced
performance in 2006.

During the year, we deployed

. our capital resources to grow our

steel processing platform and to
reward our shareholders through
dividends. We completed $17
million of capital'projects during
the year to expand capacity, lower
conversion costs, improve our
information systems, and enhance

' our quality and service to our
. customers. In addition, we
- acquired Kasle Steel at a cash cost

of $33.9 million plus assumed
liabilities. ‘Finally, our Board of
Directors authorized an increase
in our semi-annual dividend to
$0.30 per share, from 80.25 in
2005, demonstrating confidence
in the continued success of our
company. Even so, our balance
sheet remains strong with ample
capacity for future growth. As of
the fiscal year-end, our debt
represented just 319 of the
Company's total capitalization.

North American Operations
Steel Technologies' operations
in the United States, Canada and
Mexico excel at delivering the
highest level of quality, service
and on-time delivery to our
customers. In 2006, we continued
to build relationships with large

. national accounts across all

market segments by leveraging
our combined company and joint-
venture network of 23 North
American facilities. This number
will grow to 26 in early 2007 with
the completion of our newest
operation in Mexico and our two

additional joint-venture facilities
with Mi-Tech Steel.

Automotive manufacturing is the
largest consuming industry in
North America for flat-rolled steel.
Steel Technologies has continued
to grow with traditional U.S.
automakers and has considerable
future opportunities in this key
market segment. At the same
time, the Company has recognized
the potential presented by the
new domestics and, in 1987, joined
with Mitsui & Co., one of Japan’s
leading steelmakers, to form Mi-
Tech Steel to establish a presence
with the Japanese automotive
transplants. Mi-Tech has since
expanded to five high-volume
steel-producing facilities,
strategically located near the new
domestics, and has played an
increasingly significant role in
Steel Technologies' growth
platform. '

New Domestics

We continue to expand our business

‘with Japanese automakers.
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We continue to benefit from
trends among our original
equipment manufacturing
customers and steel producing
customers to reduce suppliers and
OULSOUICE NON-COTe Processes. .
Our ability to provide precision
steel products with efficient, just-
in-time delivery has enabled us to
expand our business with these
large regional and national
accounts. Qur broad capabilities
and geographic presence offer
distinct competitive advantages to
our multi-plant customers
throughout the United States,
Canada and Mexico that are
seeking the most efficient route to
market for their flat-rolled
products.

Our geographic diversity plays
a key role in our growth
strategies. We have expanded our
operations in Canada, the
Midwest, the southeastern United
States, and our fastest growing
market — Mexico. As a result,
while the tonnage sold in fiscal
2006 from our U.S. operations
was down 696, it was up nearly
199% in Mexico. Also, our toll
processing tonnage, where we are
paid a value-added processing fee
without taking inventory risk, rose
39% across all Steel Technologies”
operations.

Joint-Venture Operations
Another key part of our growth
strategies 1s our joint-venture
investments. With the
acquisition of Kasle Steel, we not
only added two wholly owned
factlities, but also three new joint-

venture companies. Our joint
ventures now include Mi-Tech
Steel, RSDC, Delaco Kasle
Processing, Kasle Metal
Processing, and Ferrolux Metals,
all of which were positive
contributors to our 2006 results.
Our equity in the net income of
these unconsolidated affiliates
grew from $2.8 million in 2004 to
$4.9 million in 2005 and nearly
$6 million in 2006, with only a
partial year reported from our
newest companies. Our joint-
venture companies each represent
a key niche in the steel processing
industry, including expertise in
automotive exposed blanking,

- growth with the new domestic

automotive industry, and minority-
certified business status.

Leadership Position

We believe we hold leadership
positions in the processing of flat-
rolled steel in the following:

* Best North American platform
of operations (including our
joint-venture facifides);

* Largest supplier of exposed
automotive blanks in North
America;

* Fastest growing processor in
Mexico; and

* Number one provider to “new
domestic” automotive companies.

From the example set by our
Founding Chairman beginning in
1971 to the strong direction
provided by our executive team,
leadership has always been a
cornerstone of our company's

., Joint-Venture Partners . 300,000

: To expand the scope of our North

' American operations and take !

' advantage of globalization

. among steel producers and

' consumers, we opened our first™ ~ - -

. facility in Mexico in 1994. During
the following 12 years, we have

. added three additional facilities
and have developed a leading

' flat-rolled steel processing
platform in Mexico. With our fifth
facility in Juarez coming on line

| next year, Steel Technologies is__,
well positioned to continueto s,
participate in the fast-growingw ;

i Mexican economy. ! E']

N

Steel Technologies is]
foremost flat-rolled

Steel Technologies
& Joint Ventures

2006 Tons Sold versus Toll Processed
Steel Technologies
oo NN 0o
[

Steel Technologies
Toll Processed

Tens Sold

Joint-Venture Partners
Toll Processed

I 5o
R oo

Joint-Venture Partners Toll Processed tons
annualized te reflect full-year operations
of Kasle Steel related joint ventures,

Total Tons
Shipped 2006
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\ Processing

We have increased our focus on
Value—added toll processing.

I .
Toll processing - processing steel for steel mills and large end-users where those customers own the steel
and retain title - is a high-growth business and an increasing focus for Steel Technologies. Toll processing
eliminates inventory risk for our company, requires less working capital, and allows us to leverage our
operations to achieve greater value for our customers and enhance our position in the overall supply
chain. Toll processing touches almost all of our value-added processes and increases capacity utilization
through existing facilities. in addition, our recent Kasle Steel acquisition expanded our toll processing
substantially as the majority of their business is processing material exclusively on a toll basis.

~
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Stmp pmducts

"We have more than doubled our capacity P
——+to-produce strip products.

In 2003, with the acquisition of  [K_ M
» -

our Cold Rolled Strip facility in
Ottawa, Ohio, we more than
doubled our capacity to
process highly engineered
strip products. We have
continued to invest in and
substantially broaden our
strip product capabilities.
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success. .We will continue to lead
our industry as we face the
challenges and opportunities ahead.

Looking Ahead

Over the past 35 years, we have
buitt a consistently profitable and
unique platform that we believe
will yield better financial results in
the future. Our team is dedicated
to improving our performance,
and we are very confident about
our long-term strategies. Our
leadership position and financial
strength have positioned us well to
capitalize on industry
consolidation and offer a bright

future for our company and its
shareholders.

In Appreciation

Howard F. (Biddy) Bates, a
29-year veteran of Steel
Technologies and most recently
Vice President of Technical
Services for our company, has
announced his intention to retire
at the end of calendar 2006.
Biddy has been instrumental in
OUr COmpany’s SUCCEss 1N many
ways, including serving on our
Board of Directors, developing our
metallurgical staff, and leading our
efforts to obtain the highest

‘quality certifications in the

industry. On behalf of all of us at
Steel Technologies, we extend our
deep appreciation to Biddy for his
many years of outstanding

leadership. We wish him safe

travels in his future adventures.

On behalf of our Board of
Directors and all of our
employees, thank you for your
continued support of Steel
Technologies.

Ly

Bradford T. Ray

Chatrman and Chief Executive Qfftcer

M

Michael J. Carroll

President and Chief Operating Officer

North American Platform

- We have continually expanded the resources we bring to market, broadened our scope of products and |

" services, and strengthened our leadership position in the industry. Powered by our people, we have bullt a
. North American platform of operations that is recognized by our customers and suppliers as the partner of
choice. This approach continues to be the cornerstone of our growth strategy.

# Headquarters
Louisville, Kentucky

® Steel Technologies
Facilities

Portage, Indiana

Eminence, Kentucky

Matamoros, Mexico
Monterrey, Mexico
Queretaro, Mexico
Puebla, Mexico

Juarez, Mexico (opening
2007)

4 Ferrolux Metals
Wayne, Michigan

® Kasle Steel
RSDC, Holt, Michigan
Kasle Metal Pracessing,
Jeffersonwilte, Indiana
Delaco Kasle Processing,
Woodhaven, Michigan

Ghent, Kentucky s i
Clinton, North Carolina (2) oP
Canton, Michigan ® Mi-Tech b
" Flint, Michigan Steel Facilities H
Cleveland, Ohio Decatuy, Atabama = ®
Ottawa, Ohio Greensburg, Indiana L]
Berkaley, South Carolina Madisan, Mississippi L
Windsor, Canada Murfreesboro, Tennessee {2) .
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Selected Financial Data

{in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended September 30

2006 = 2005 2004 2003 2002
As Restated™ ¢ As Restated® As Restated™ As Restated™

Income Statement Data f
Sales . e § 876,121 $957,739 §$765,294 $ 501,579 § 466,003
Costofgoodssold™ ...................... 817,579 871,737 ' 676,306 458,455 408,335
Grossprofit ... 58,542 86,002 88,988 43,124 57,668
Selling, general and administrative expenses® .. 38,478 36,301 33,627 27,097 29,331
Operating income ® .................. o 20,064 49,701 55,361 16,027 - 28,337
Equity in net income of unconsolidated

affiliates, net ™ ... L oL L 5,971 4,937 2,852 1,058 1,540
Income from continuing operations hefore i

incometaxes ™ ... ... ... 20,560 50,280 i 54,491 12,757 25,328
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . . 1,031 2,897 | 732 338 (36)
Netincome ... viritn i 14,693 36,709 | 35,373 9,480 16,100
Diluted earnings per common share from ; '

contmumg Operations .................. $ 1.04 § 2.58 § 3.00 $ 092 § 1.63
Diluted earnings per common share .......... $ 112 ¢ 2808 307 ¢ 09 § 163
Diluted weighted average number of common

shares outstanding ......... ... ... ..., 13,117 13,098 11,533 9,899 9,886
Basic earnings per common share from }

contmumg OPErations . .........oevui..nns $ 1.05 8 262 § 307 §% 094 § 1.65
Basic earnings per common share ............ $ 113 ¢ 28518 313 $ 097 § 1.65
Basic weighted average number of common

shares outstanding ............... ... 12,956 12,894 ) 11,284 9,748 9,762
Cash dividends per common share ........... $ 030 8 025 & 020 8 020 8 0Ol
Balance Sheet Data _ ,
Working capital ............... .. oL $ 209,596 $£209,933 - §$193,872 $100,959. § 81,350
Total as5€ts .. .ottt e s 513,617 427,786 460,852 312,148 304,015
Debr and capital lease obligations . ........... 121,985 80,000 114,000 100,400 80,659
Shareholders’ equity .......... ... .. .. ... 269,760 257,290 220,327 139,886 133,445
Other Data
Capital expenditures, including acquisitions

and investments in and advances to

unconsolidated affiliates .. ............... $ 50,801 ¢ 15054 $ 15,464 § 25919 § 6,922
Shareholders’ equity per common share ... .... 20.66 19.90 17.21 14.33 13.81
Depreciation and amortization® . ............ 16,350 14,754 14,449 13,356 14,187

" The Company has restated its previously reported consolidated financial results to reflect certain income tax adjustments as discussed in Note

1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

W 2006 includes stock-based compensation of $780 from adopnon of SFAS No. 123(R) as dlscusscd in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financtal
Statements and 2002 includes goodwill amortization of $396 prior to adoption of SFAS No. 142. .
@ The effect of the restatement on previously reported consolidated financial results for 2003 and 2002 follows:

September 30, 2003 September 30, 2002
" Previously Previously
Reported  Adjustments  Restated Reported  Adjustments Restated
Minority interest in income of consolidated ’
subsidiary ..ol $ 215) & (13) $ (228) 8 (218) $ (12) s (230)
Income before income taxes ................ 12,770 H(13) 12,757 25,340 (12) 25,328
Provision for income taxes .. ................ 3,956 (341) 3,615 9,510 (318) 9,192
Income from continuing operations .......... 8,814 328 9,142 15,830 306 16,136
Netincome ........0. 0 eiiiiiianiiaia, 9,152 328 9,480 15,794 366 16,100
Diluted earnings per common share: . ......... :
From continuing operations ............. § 089 $ 003 $ 092 $ 1.60 $ 003 $ - 163
From discontinued operations . ..........., 0.03 - 0.03 0.00 - 0.00
—§F 092 § 003 § 0% § 160 $ 003 § 183

“ Minoriry interest in income of consolidated subsidiary of $228 and $230 in 2003 and 2002, respectively, was reclassified from cost of goods
sold to 4 component of income from continuing operations before income taxes. Equiry in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net of
$1,058 and $1,540 in 2003 and 2002, respectively, was reclassified from a ‘component of operating income to income from continuing

operations before income taxes.
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! Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) I‘

{in thousands, except per share amounts})

Fiscal Year 2006 Fist  Second * Third  Fourth

As Restated " As Restated ™ As Restated ™ . \
1S $201,185 § 238,336 $234,455 $§202,145 \
Gross profit . . ..o u i e 12,238 12,639 18,982 14,683 !
Netincome ...... ..o 3,340 2,885 5,505 2,963 !
Diluted earnings per common share .......... ... ... ... $ 02 8§ 022 % 042 § 023 :
Basic earnings per common share . ............. ... .. .. $ 026 8§ 022 § 042 % 023 |

, .
| : |
ﬁ Fiscal Year 2005 First Second Third Fourth :
\\ i As Restated ™ As Restated @ As Restated ™ As Restated ™ .
' Sales ........ e e e $245676 $275278 $243,675 §193,110 \
Gross profit .. .\ o e 31,073 29,744 17,386 7,799
NEt INCOME .« o . ot ettt e e e et ittt e e e 14,603 15,931 5,655 520
Diluted earnings per common share . .................... $§ 112 8 122 § 043 $8 004 .
Basic earnings per commonshare ... ... . ... L $ 114 8§ 124 § 044 $ 004

" The Company has restated its previously reported consolidated financial statements to reflect certain income tax adjustments as discussed in
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Market Price and Dividend Information = - ' |

Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ _Global Select Market under the symbol STTX. At December 2,
2006, we had approximately 3,750 shareholders, including beneficial owners holding shares in nominee or street
name. Qur current dividend policy provides for semiannual payments of cash dividends. The following table S
shows cash dividends and high, low and closing prices for our common stock for each quarter of fiscal 2006 and
2005. NASDAQ Global Select Market quortations are based on actual transactions. i

Stock Price
Fiscal Year 2006 High Low Close  Dividends
First Quarter .. ... ... ... e $ 2889 $§ 2230 8§ 2799 § 015
Second Quarter .......... it § 2994 § 2255 § 2430
Third Quarter .. ... e $ 2828 § 1580 § 1944 s 0.15
Fourth Quarter ... ... . ... § 2423 § 1701 $§ 1963

Stock Price
Fiscal Year 2005 : High Low Close - Dividends
First Quarter . . ..o oo e $§ 3058 §$ 2227 § 2751 § 010
Second Quarter ................ e $ 3356 § 2326 $§ 2399
Third Quarter . ... vvurii e $§ 2438 % 1649 § 1690 $ 0.15
Fourth Quarter .. ... .o $§ 2683 & 1675 § 2593 :
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

+ [
When used in the following discussion, the words “estimates,” “expects,” mt!:nds, annc1patcs "“believes” and
other similar expressmns are intended to identify forward-looking statements, which are made pursuant to the safe
harbor provxslons of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ matermlly from those projected.
Specific risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, competitive factors such as pricing and availability of
steel; cycllcal demand in the steel industry, specifically in the automotive markct our ability to make and integrate 2
acquisitions; our mablllty to obtain sufficient capital resources to fund our operatlons and our growth; risk of
business interruptions affecting automotive manufacturers; and reliance on key customers. Readers are cautioned not
to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. We undertake
no obligation to republish revised forward-looking statements to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events or
circumstances after the date hereof. Unless the context otherwise requires, rcfefenccs to “we,” “us” or “our” refer
collectively to Steel Technologies Inc. and its subsidiaries.
You should read this discussion with the consolidated financial statements and other financial information
included in this report. Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
We completed the sale of our Custom Steel, Inc. (Custom Steel) subsidiary on March 31, 2006. Accordingly,
results of operations and gain on the sale of Custom Stecl are treated as discontinued operations in our consolidated =
financial statements. In addition, we completed the acquisition of Kasle Steel Corporation (Kasle Steel) on May 8,
2006, and the result of operations of Kasle Steel are recorded in our results begiinning in May 2006. .

"

Overview ’

This past year marked our thirty-fifth anniversary of our company and our thlrry—ﬁfth consecutive year of
proﬁtab1hry We met a number of challenges and had many achievements over thf: past thxrty five years, and we
remain focused on our long-term goal to build the most profitable steel processing company in North America. Our
company was founded in 1971 with the vision to become the leader in the steel processing industry. We are now
one of the largest independent steel processors and converters of flat-rolled steel in North America. Our North
American platform of 23 steel-processing facilities, including our joint ventures, is strategically positioned in steel
producing and consuming markets throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. We bring value to our
customers with precision steel processing, supply chain management, quality control and technical support. We
specialize in meeting exact specifications for customers in a variety of mdustnes, and end use markets including
automotive, lawn and garden, and appliance industries. With our acquxsmon of Kasle Steel in May, 2006, we
established ourselves as the largest independent suppher of exposed automotive steel blanks in North America.

We intend to continue to pursue growth through acquisitions, expansion of existing facilities, Greenfield
construction and development of our joint venture operations.

The strength of our business is based upon our capability to process steel to the most precise specifications and to
service the steel purchasing and delivery requirements of our customers expcdltlously We have achieved high levels
of quality and productivity by investing in efficient, technologically advanced equipment. Each of our Steel
Technologies facilities maintains one or more internationally recognized Quality Management Systems such as
Q59000 or ISO 9001. Our broad capabilities and geographic presence offer distinct competitive advantages to
customers that have multi-plant operations throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. We focus our sales
and marketing strategies through our highly skilled and experienced sales and marketing staff to ﬁJHy leverage our
North American platform of value added steel processing facilities. Our ability to provide precision steel products
with efficient j Just—m time delivery has enabled us to expand our business with regional and large national accounts.

Sales from continuing operations were $876.1 million in fiscal 2006, a decrease of 8.5% from the record $957.7
million in fiscal 2005. Net income was §14.7 million or $1.12 per dlluted share in fiscal 2006 as compared to $36.7
million or $2.80 per diluted share in fiscal 2005. Tons sold of company-owned steel products in fiscal 2006 were 1.1
million, reflecting a decrease of 3.3% over the levels of fiscal 2005. Our sales and earmngs in 2006 were below the
record levels achieved in 2005 as a more compcntwc environment in the steel processing sector and reduced
automotive schedules pressured our operating margins.

On May 8, 2006, we completed an acquisition of all the outstanding stock of privately held Kasle Steel of
Dearborn, Michigan. Kasle Steel is North America’s largest independent supplier of exposed automotive steel
blanks, shipping over 1.5 million tons annually through its five processing facilities, including its three ‘
unconsolidated affiliates. We paid approximately $33.9 million in cash for the stock of Kasle Steel and assumed
approximately $25.8 million of Kasle Steel’s liabilities. We utilized our existing revolving credit facility to fund the
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

purchase, and we have retired approximately $4.0 million of Kasle Steel’s outstanding debt. The operating results of
Kasie Steel are included in our consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.

We spent approximately $17.0 million on capital projects during 2006. These projects focused on enhancing
efficiencies at existing operations and further improving the quality of our products and services to our customers.
In addition, we began construction of a new facility in Juarez, Mexico. This facility is expected to begin processing
in our third qua:ter of fiscal 2007. Our 2007 capital expenditures budget of $19.0 million includes completion of
the Juarez project and expansion of our annealing capacity.

On October 30, 2006, we announced that we would restate prcwously issued consolidated financial statements.
The accompanying results of operations have been restated to give retroactive effect for the restatements berween
January 1, 1999 and June 30, 2006. The nature of the restatements and the effect on the results of operations arc
discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Financial Highlights (in thousands, except per share amounts, other data and percentages)

For the Years Ended September 30

2006 2005
% of Actual % of %
Actual Sales As Restated ™ Sales Change

Sales ... e e $ 876,121 100.0% § 957,739 100.0% (9)%
Grossprofit . ... 58,542 6.7 86,002 9.0 (32)
Selling, general and administrative expenses .. .. 38,478 4.4 36,301 3.8 6
Operating income ...t 20,064 23 49,701 52 {60)
Interest expense, net .. ... 4,544 0.5 3,632 0.4 25
Equity in net income of unconsolidated

affiiates,net .. ............. .. ... .. ..., 5,971 0.7 4,937 0.5 21
Income from contmumg operations before

INCOME TAXES © v v ie vt e iennrnannenns 20,560 2.3 50,280 5.2 {59)
Discontinued operations, net of taxes . ......... 1,031 0.1 2,897 0.3 (64)
NetINCOME © oo oottt e e e 14,693 1.7 36,709 3.8 {60)
Diluted earnings per common share from

continuing operations . .................. $ 1.04 $ 2.58 (60)
Diluted earnings per common share .......... 8 1.12 $ 2.80 (60)
Cash dividends per common share .. .......... $ 0.30 $ 0.25 20
Other Data
Average days sales outstanding . ........ ... .. 429 421 2
Inventory turnover ...........iiiiiiaaa 45 7.6 (41)
Returnonequity ........cooiiivi .., 5.4% 14.3% (62)

™ The Company has restated its previously reported consolidared financial statements to reflect cerrain income tax adjustments as discussed in
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Results of Operatidns - Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

Sales

We achieved net sales of 8876,121,000 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, a decrease of 8.5% from the
record sales of $957,739,000 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. We shipped 1,095,000 tons of company-
owned steel products in fiscal 2006, a 3.3% decrease compared to fiscal 2005 resulting from weaker demand during
fiscal 2006. Our average selling price of company-owned steel products decreased approximately 5.4% for fiscal
2006 as compared to the previous year. Kasle Steel contributed approximately $10,205,000 of sales for fiscal 2006.

Gross profit
Our fiscal 2006 gross profit margin was 6.7%, compared to 9.0% for fiscal 2005. Declining steel prices, a more
competitive environment, and reduced automotive schedules reduced our fiscal 2006 gross profit margin. We expect
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: e U U B :
continued pressure on our gross profit during our first quareet of fis¢il' 2007 as™we adjust our inventory levels to~—~

reflect lower expected sales. Our cost of goods sold decreased 6.2% in fiscal 2006 versus fiscal 2005. Lower average
raw material costs and lower shipment levels resulted in our cost of goods sold decreasing by $62,660,000. Partially
offsetting our cost of goods sold reduction were increased labor costs and related fringe benefits, expenses associated
w1th the acquisition of Kasle Steel and increased fuel costs totaling appr0x1mately £8,502,000.

Selling, general and administrative expenses I

Our fiscal 2006 selling, general and administrative costs increased by $2,177, 000 to $38,478,000, compared to
§36,301,000 for fiscal 2005. Expenses of $2,470,000 associated with the acqmsmon of Kasle Steel, $§780,000 of
stock-based compensation resulting from our adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No.
123(R}, “Share-Based Payment,” $600,000 of increased depreciation expense pnmarlly related to investments in our
information systems, and $228,000 in additional general and administrative cxpcnses account for the majority of the
increase. These increases were partially offset by decreases of $1,394,000 in our company wide bonus plan expense
relating to net income and $507,000 in lower selling expenses.

Sellmg, general and administrative costs were 4.4% and 3.8% of sales in 2006 and 2005, respectively, due to an
increase in selling, general and administrative expenses as noted above and a decrease in net sales. We continue to
actively manage and rationalize our selling, general and administrative cxpenses!

Eguity in net income of unconsolidated qﬁiliates, nef

Qur share of the income from unconsolidated affiliates increased to $5,971,000 for fiscal 2006 versus §4,937,000
in fiscal 2005. Kasle Steel’s three unconsolidated affiliates contributed approximately 3,964,000 to equity in net
income of unconselidated affiliates in 2006.

Our unconsolidated affiliates reported $307,195,000 in sales for fiscal 2006, an increase of 1.6% compared to
fiscal 2005. Kasle Steel’s three unconsolidated affiliates contributed approximately $44,031,000 in sales for fiscal
2006. Our unconsolidated affiliates continue to play an important role in our North American platform. Growth
from our joint ventures is a key part of cur overall strategy as we strengthen our competitive position.

Interest expense

Net interest expense for fiscal 2006 increased to $4,544,000 from $3,632,000 for fiscal 2005. The increase is
primarily attributable to approximately 2.0% higher average interest rates on variable rate debt during fiscal 2006 as
compared to fiscal 2005 and interest expense on capital lease additions in fiscal 2006, These increases were partially
offset by lower average borrowings on our line of credit during fiscal 2006 versus fiscal 2005.

Income tax expense

Ovur effective income tax rate was 33.6% and 32.8% for fiscal 2006 and 2005 respectively. Adopnon of SFAS
No. 123(R) on October 1, 2005, which resulted in non-deductible compensation expense on our incentive stock
options, increased our effecrive income tax rate 2.0% in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005. This increase was
partially offset by a 4.1% decrease in the effective income tax rate resulting from higher earnings from our Mexican
subsidiary. During the second quarter of fiscal 2005, we recorded an income tax benefit of approximately
$1,635,000 reflecting changes in Mexican tax laws effective January 1, 2005. This change reduced our effective
income tax rate during fiscal 2005 by 3.3%.

Results of Operations - Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

Sales

We achieved net sales of $957,739,000 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, an increase of 25.1% from
fiscal year 2004 sales of $765,294,000. Tons of company-owned steel products shipped in fiscal 2005 decreased
approximately 7.5% to 1,133,000 tons compared to record levels in fiscal 2004, primarily as a result of weaker
demand during the latter half of fiscal 2005. The average selling price of company-owned steel products increased
approximately 36.3% for fiscal 2005 as compared to the previous year.

Gross profit

In fiscal 2005, our gross profit margin was 9.0% compared to 11.6% for fiscal 2004. We began experiencing-
slowing demand during the latter half of fiscal 2005, and declining steel prices reduced our gross profit margin.
Cost of goods sold increased 28.9% in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004. Cost of materials sold increased

4




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

$194,585,000, pliimarily due to increased raw material costs. The remaining $846,000 increase in cost of goods sold
resulted primarily from increased labor costs and related fringe benefits and increased delivery costs in the first half
of fiscal 2005.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Our fiscal 2005 selling, general and administrative costs were $36,301,000 compared to $33,627,000 for fiscal
2004, an increase of $2,674,000. The increase was mainly attributable to increases in professional services of
81,346,000, principally to comply with Sarbanes-Oxley legislation, administrative wages increases of $722,000 to
support our growth, an increase in depreciation expense of $381,000 primarily related to investments in our
information systems and higher training costs of $251,000. In addition, more normalized payroll and property tax
expenses in fiscal 2005 contributed.to an increase of approXimately $740,000, due primarily to non-recurring
expense reductions in 2004 for a state payroll tax incentive and a state property tax benefit. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease in bad debt expense of 508,000 attributable to bad debt recoveries during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2005 and a decrease of $258,000 in remaining selling, general and administrative expenses. Our
selling, general and administrative costs were 3.8% and 4.4% of sales in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net

Qur share of the income from unconsolidated affiliates increased to $4,937,000 in fiscal 2005 compared to
$2,852,000 in ﬁécal 2004, Mi-Tech Steel’s sales increased 41.9% and tons shipped grew 28.5% in fiscal 2005
compared to fiscal 2004, resulting in an 82.2% increase in fiscal 2005 net income. Mi-Tech Steel benefited from
market share growth with Japanese transplant automotive companies and their related parts manufacturers.

Interest expense

Net interest expense for fiscal 2005 increased to $3,632,000 from $3,098,000 for fiscal 2004. The increase was
mainly attributable to higher average interest rates on both variable and fixed rate debt during fiscal 2005 as
compared to fiscal 2004. Higher interest expense was partially offset by a $34,000,000 reduction in outstanding
debt during fiscal 2005, including $20,000,000 paid in September 2005, and a $269,000 expense included in fiscal
2004 related to the early retirement of our private placement note in June, 2004.

Income tax expense

Our effective income tax rate was 32.8% and 36.4% for fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. During the second
quarter of fiscal 2005, we recorded an income tax benefit of approximately 1,635,000 to reflect changes in tax laws
effective January 1, 2005 for our Mexican operations, resulting in a 3.3% reduction in our effective income tax rate
during fiscal 2005. :

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We had $209,596,000 of working capital at Scptcmber 30, 2006, a current ratio of 3.17:1 and total debt at 31.1%

of total capitalization. Qur working capital requirements generally increase during periods of economic expansion
and higher demand for our products. Conversely, our working capital requirements decrease in periods of economic
contraction and reduced steel product demand.

Days sales outstanding to customers averaged 43 days at September 30, 2006, compared to 42 days at September
30, 2005. We expect days sales outstanding to average 45 days during the first quarter of fiscal 2007. As a result of
reduced automotive schedules during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, our average days inventory on hand was 80
days at September 30, 2006, compared to 47 days as of September 30, 2005. We expect average days inventory on
hand of 65 days during the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

Our average supplier payment days was 27 days as of September 30, 2006, compared to 25 days as of September 30,

2005. We expect average payment days to suppliers of approximately 30 days during the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

Cash used in operations during fiscal 2006 was $24,400,000 resulting from increases in working capital, partially
offset by net income of $14,693,000. Inventory increased $63,275,000 as a result of reduced automotive schedules
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, and accounts payable mcreased $1,104,000. Accounts receivable decreased
$8,526,000, mainly due to lower sales levels.

Capltal expenditures for 2006 totaled $16,955,000 as we invested to further cxpand capacity, lower conversion
costs, improve our quality and service to our customers and improve our information systems. We have committed
$19,000,000 in capital projects for 2007 to expand our steel processing capabilities, including construction of a new
processing facility in Juarez, Mexico, which is expected to begin processing in the third quarter of fiscal 2007.
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On May 8, 2006, we completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of Kasle Steel for $33,913,000 in
cash and assumed approximately 825,789,000 of Kasle Steel’s liabilities. We utilized our existing revolving credit
facility to fund the purchase, and we have retired approximately $3,970,000 of Kasle Steel’s outstanding debt,

Under the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement, §2,000,000 of the purchase price was deposited in an escrow
account to satisfy indemnification provisions provided by former sharcholders of Kasle Steel to us. All uncontested
escrowed funds will be distributed to the former shareholders at various times from November 2007 through May
2012.

We recorded $4,902,000 in debt and capital lease obhgatlons as of June 30, 2006 associated with the acquisition
“of Kasle Steel, mcludmg a consulting and non-compete agreement with a former Kasle Steel sharehoider. This
agreement requires monthly payments of $25,000 until May 2011. Addmonall}, monthly payments of $20,559,
including interest at an annual rate of 7.0%, are required to be made to a former Kasle Steel shareholder through
May 2017. Annual principal payments of $350,000 plus interest at 9.0% are required to be made to a former Kasle
Steel shareholder every year until January 1, 2010. Existing capital lease obligations of Kasle Steel require monthly
payments ranging from approximately $28,000 to 333,000 until June 2007.

We entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement on March 24, 2006 to sell all the capital stock of our wholly owned
Custom Steel subsidiary to a wholly owned subsidiary of American Railcar Industries, Inc. (ARI). The final sales
price was approximately $17,061,000, of which $16,311,000 was remitted to us and an additional $750,000 to a
third party escrow agent. We used the proceeds to reduce our revolving credit facility debt.

In connection with the sale of Custom Steel, we retained approximately $3,012,000 of obligations, consisting
mainly of trade accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deferred taxes. We have also agreed to indemnify ARI for
any payments they make for liabilities incurred by Custom Steel prior to March 31, 2006. The indemnification
provisions for most liabilities expire on March 31, 2008, and they require the buyer to incur at least $75,000 in
aggregate liabilities before a claim can be asserted. Indemnification provisions for certain liabilities, primarily taxes,
expire with applicable statutes of limitations, and the remaining provisions, primarily environmental, do not expire.
We have not recorded any liabilities for these indemnifications since management has determined that none are
probable. We will receive the §750,000 escrow at various times prior to March 31, 2008, to the extent there are no
indemnification claims made by AR

We maintain an equity investment of apprommately $25,744,000 in our 90%- owncd Mexican subsidiary. We
would finance any additional required investment in our Mexican operations with cash and available funds from our
bank line of credit.

Translation of our Mexican subsidiary’s financial statements from local currency to the U.S. dollar subjects us to
exposure from fluctuating currency exchange rates. The relative stability of the Mexican peso and the large
percentage of U.S. dollar denominated transactions of our Mexican subsidiary mitigate this exposure somewhat. We
historically have not used derivative financial instruments to manage our foreign currency exchange rate risk, We
include foreign currency transaction gains (losses) in our sales as incurred. Foreign currency gains (losses) were
$476,000, ($855,000} and $468,000 for the fiscal years ending 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

We maintain a 509 equity investment in Mi-Tech Steel and a 49% equity investment in Ferrolux Metals.
Additional equity contributions to our unconsolidated affiliates are not required, and we do not guarantee any
obligations of our unconsolidated affiliates. Though Mi-Tech Steel’s board of directors may authorize cash
distributions, such distributions are restricted by one of Mi-Tech Steel’s loan agréements to 15% of Mi-Tech Steel's
net income in any fiscal year. Distributions from Mi-Tech Steel are not, and are not expected to be, a material source
of liquidity for us. Mi-Tech Steel’s liquidiry needs are met primarily by their operating cash flows and an existing
credit facility. Cash flows from operations and available borrowing capacity are cxpected to meet Mi-Tech Steel’s
future cash requirements.

We acquired a 50% equity investment in RSDC of Mlchlgan, L.L.C,a50% cqmty investment in Kasle Metal
Processing, LLC (KMP) and a 49% equity investment in Delaco-Kasle LLC (DK) as a result of our Kasle Steel
acquisition. Though we do not expect to make additional equity contributions to these unconsolidated affiliates,
Kasle Steel has guaranteed debt obligations of $2,500,000 for KMP and $490,000 for DK. These guarantees are
proportionate to the obligations of the other equity investors in KMP and DK. Cash flows from operations and
existing credir facilities are expected to meet the liquidity needs of these unconsolidated affiliates. Operating
agreements require these unconsolidated affiliates to make periodic minimum distributions to their members.

We issued 850,000,000 in unsecured senior notes on October 21, 2004, comprised of $10,000,000 of 5.33%
Series A Semor Notes due October 21, 2011, and $40,000,000 of 5.75% Series B Senior Notes due October 21,
2014. The notes have an average term of 9.4 years and a blended interest rate of 5.67%. We used proceeds from the
notes to reduce borrowings on our revolving credit facility.
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We have a 3135 000,000 unsecured revolvmg credit facility that matures October, 2010. Upon our meeting
certain requirements, we can request our existing banking group to expand our revolving credit facility availability to
$200,000,000. Wc can elect to pay interest on the facility at various floating rates, none of which is greater than the
banks’ prime rate. At September 30, 2006, we had $64,000,000 of borrowings outstanding under the revolving
credit famhty at an average interest rate of 6.92%. We borrow under our revolving credit facility as needed to fund
our operating and investing activities described above. During fiscal 2006, we borrowed $64,000,000 to fund our
working capital needs and the Kasle Steel acquisition, and we repaid 34,649,000 from operating cash flows and the
sale of Custom Steel. We had outstanding checks of $13,617,000 as of September 30, 2006, that may result in
additional line of credit borrowings if our bank accounts do not have sufficient funds when these checks are
presented to thf: bank.

Qur debt agreements’ covenants require us to maintain specified levels of net worth and certain financial ratios,
and limit capital expenditures, operating leases, capital leases and additional debt. In connection with the Kasle
Steel acquisition, we amended our revolving credit facility in fiscal 2006 to permit certain debt obligations and
limited guarantees. We are in compliance with our loan covenants, and none of these covenants would restrict the
completion of currently planned capital expenditures.

We meet our liquidity needs primarily with operating cash flows and our revolving credit facility. Cyclicality of
demand in the steel industry, especially in the automotive market, can influence our operating cash flows. We
anticipate additional borrowing on our existing revolving credit facility to support our continued growth and to meet
our working capital needs.

We have entered into leases to meet the needs of our facilities. The following table summarizes the annual
payments of outstanding debt, interest, other long-term obligations on the balance sheet, and non-cancelable leases,
required as of September 30, 2006. Interest payments below include the estimated contractual interest payments
under our debt agreements net of the effect of the associated interest rate swap agreement, assuming no change in
the variable LIBOR rate or amounts outstanding under our existing debt agreements as of September 30, 2006.

Less Than More Than
) Total 1 Year 1-3Years 3-5 Years 5 Years

Long-termdebt . ................ $ 118,512,000 § 776,000 § 1;486,000 § 65,114,000 $ 51,136,000

Interest on long-term debt ........ 40,817,000 7,262,000 15,166,000 ~ 10,615,000 7,774,000
Other long-term obligations

reflected on balance sheet .. ... .. 5,003,000 232,000 692,000 652,000 3,427,000

Capiral lease oblipations .......... 3,865,000 1,512,000 1,850,000 469,000 34,000

Operating lease obligations ........ 2,006,000 880,000 1,107,000 19,000 -

Totals ..... e £170,203,000 $10,662,000 $§20,301,000 $76,869,000 $62,371,000

We entered into an interest rate swap contract with a major financial institution on June 20, 2005, to mitigate a
portion of our variable rate debt market risk. The interest rate swap contract matures in September 2008. Under
the swap agreement, we receive a LIBOR based variable interest rate (5.39% ar September 30, 2006) and pay a fixed
interest rate of 4.31% on a notional amount of $30,000,000,

Union employees in our Canton, Michigan, facility ratified a contract in July 2005 that expires in March 2010.
In September 2006, union employees in our Windsor, Ontario, facility ratified a contract that expires in Deccmber
2009.

At this time, we have no other known material obligations, commitments or demands that must be met beyond
the next twelve months. As part of our ongoing business, we do not participate or knowingly seck to participate in
transactions that generate relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often
referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities (SPE), which would have been established for the
purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. As of
September 30, 2006, we are not involved in any SPE transactions.

We believe all manufacturing facilities are in compliance with applicable federal and state environmental
regulations. We are not presently aware of any fact or circumstance that would require the expenditure of material
amounts for environmental compliance.

Related Party Transactions
‘We have various transactions at prevailing market prices with Mi-Tech Steel (see Note 8 of our Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).
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We sell scrap steel products at prevailing market prices to a company owned by, Stuart N. Ray, a director of Steel
Technologies (see Note 19 of our Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Management reports these
transactions to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors as frequently as requested by the Committee, but at
least annually. Most recently, in April 2006, the Audit Committee reviewed and approved these transactions. We
have the ability to continue or cease selling scrap steel to this company at any time.

t
impact Of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on EITF 06-03, “How Taxes
Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income
Statement (That Is, Gross Versus Net Presentation}”. EITF 06-03 requires that, any tax assessed by a governmental
authority that is imposed concurrent with or subsequent to a revenue-producing;transaction between a seller and a
customer should be presented on a gross (included in revenues and costs) or a net (excluded from revenues) basis. In
addition, for any such taxes that are reported on a gross basis, a company should dlsdose the amounts of those taxes
in interim and annual financial statements for each period for which an income statement is presented if those
amounts are significant. The requirements of EITF 06-03 are effective for us begmmng January 1, 2007. We are in
the process of evaluating the effect of EXTF 06-03 and have not determined whether its adoption will have a
material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48),
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109”. FIN 48 ciarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The requirements of FIN 48 are effective for our fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2007. We are in the process of evaluating the effect of FIN 48 and have not determined
whether its adoption will have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
108 (SAB 108), “Conmdermg the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements”. SAB 108 was issued in order to eliminate the diversity of practice surrounding how
public companies quantify financial statement misstatemnents. Traditionally, there have been two widely recognized
methods for quantifying the effects of financial statement misstatements: the “roll-over” method and the “iron-
curtain” method. The roll-over method focuses primarily on the impact of a misstatement on the income statement
- including the reversing effect of prior year misstatermnents — but its use can lead to the accumulation of
misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron-curtain method, on the other hand, focuses primarily on the effect of
correcting the period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on the income
statement. In SAB 108, the SEC staff established an approach that requires quantification of financial statement
misstatements based on the effects of the misstatements on each of the company’s financial statements and the
related financial statement disclosures. This model is commonly referred to as a “dual approach” because it requires
quantification of errors under both the iron-curtain and the roll-over methods. We are required to apply the
provisions of SAB 108 for our fiscal year that began October 1, 2006.

Application Of Critical Accounting Policies . ‘

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with'generaily accepted accounting
principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We monitor and evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an
ongoing basis.

We include a summary of significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our most critical accounting policies include the valuation of accounts receivable, which impacts selling, general
and administrative expense, the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and long-lived assets, and revenue
recognition. Our management reviews these estimates, including, but not limited te, the allowance for doubtful
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accounts, on a regular basis and we make adjustments based on historical experiences, current conditions and future
expectations. We perform our reviews regularly, and we make adjustments as required by currently available
information. We believe these estimates are reasonable, but actual results could differ from these estimates.

Allowance for Doubtfid Accounts Receivable

Qur accounts receivable represent those amounts that we have billed to our customers but have not yet collected.
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our-customers to
make required payments at a level considered appropriate based on historical and other factors that affect
collectibility. These factors include historical trends of write-ofts, sales, recoveries and credit losses, the monitoring
of portfolio credlt quality, and current and prolected economic and market conditions. If the financial condition of
Our Customers was to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of the ability to make payments beyond prevmusly
established terms, additional allowances may be required. “We write off uncollectible accounts receivable agamst the
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable when our management determines that the probability of payment is
remote and co]%ecnon efforts have ceased.
Long-Lived A’ﬁets

We dcprematc or amortize long -lived assets with estimated useful lives to their residual values over their useful
lives in proportion to the economic value consumed. We review the carrying value of our long-lived assets for
impairment whenever changes in events and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not
be recoverable, If an evaluation were required, we compare the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated
with an asset to the asset’s carrying value to determine if a write-down to market value or undiscounted cash flows

" value is required. Future changes in circumstances, cash flow estimates and estimates of fair value could affect

the valuations.

We review goodwill annually, or sooner if indicators of impairment exist, for impairment using the present value
techmque to determine the estimated fair value of goodwill associated with each reportmg entlty [f the goodwill is
indicated as being impaired (the present value of cash flows (fair value) of the reporting unit is less than the carrying
amount), we would allocate the fair value of the reporting unit to our assets and liabilities in a manner similar to the
purchase price dllocation to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. We would then
compare this implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwi]l with the carrying amount of the reporting unit
goodwill and, if it were less, we would then recognize an 1mpa1rment loss.

Considerable management judgment is necessary to assess impairment and estimate fair value. The projection of
future cash flows for the goodwill impairment analysis requires significant judgment and estimates with respect to future
revenues related to the assets and the future cash outlays related to those revenues. Actual revenues and related cash
flows or changes in anticipated revenues and related cash flows could result in changes in the assessment and result in an
impairment charge. The assumptions used in our evaluations, such as forecasted growth rates, cost of capital, tax
rates and residual values are consistent with our internal projections and operating plans. The use of different
assumptions, including cash flows and discount rates, could increase or decrease the related impairment charge.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when all of the following criteria are met:

.+ Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists:-We have received an order from a customer.

» Delivery has occurred: For the sale of Company-owned products, revenue recognition occurs when title and

" risk of ownership have been passed to the customer. For the sale of toll processing services, revenue

recognition occurs upon completion of the service and shipment of goods.

.+ Our price to the customer is fixed or determinable: Sales prices are agreed with our customer before delivery

» has occurred.

Collectibility is reasonably assured: We have a customer credit policy to ensure coﬂectlbLhty is rcasonably
assured.

We record sales returns and a.llowanccs as reductions to sales, and we set reserves based on historical experience
and current customer activities. Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are-included in sales and shipping
and handling costs incurred by the Company are included in cost of goods sold.

I
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Consolidated Balance Sheets +
{ln thousands, except shares) 1
. September 30
' 2006 2005
As Restated,
) See Note 1
Assets !
Current assets: I
Cashand cashequivalents ........... ... .. ..o ... o i D $ 12,066 $ 30,90
‘Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts: ......... Lo
$5,370 in 2006 and $4,903 in 2005 U U 104,356 112,033
TOVEITOTIES v e e e e e e e e e e e e b 181,267 114,128
Deferred income taxes .. ...ov ittt et i e e b, 1,688 468
Prepaid expenses and otherassets . ... ... .o 0 i | 6,607 6,289
Assetsheld forsale . ... ... . i i - 20,475
Total current assets ... ..ovit it i e e 305,984 284,384
Property, plant and equipment (at cost), net of accumulated depreciation .. ... ....... 112,642 106,492
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates . . . .. ... ... .\oueein i 63,626 25,182
GoodwWill . ..o i 25,678 8,991
Other 258685 . .. ... i e e 5,687 2,737

$ 513,617 § 427,786

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity . !
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable .. .. ... b $ 62,204 § 59,559
Bankoverdrafts ........ .. .. .. . . e S 13,617 -
Accrued liabilities .. ... .. . e e 15,993 13,380
Income taxes payable .. ... .. ... .. 2,500 1,244
Deferred income taxes .. ...t ii i e e - 69
Liabilities associated with assets held forsale ............... ... ....... e - 199
Current portion of debt and capital lease obligations ................... j ....... 2,074 -
Total current liabilities ... .. .. e e 96,388 74,451
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations . . .. ................... B 119,911 80,000
Deeferred INCOME tAXES . - - oottt it ettt e e s 20,243 12,113
Other long-term Liabilities . ... .. ... i L - 3,941 1,488
Total labilities . . ... .ot e ... 240,483 168,052

Commitments and contingencies
MINOrity INTEIEST . . ..ttt et e e e . 3,374 2,444
Sharcholders’ equity: !

Preferred stock, no par value; 500,000 shares authorized; none issued or outstanding - -
Common stock, no par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; issued and

outstanding shares: 13,055,331 in 2006 and 12,927,826 in 2005 ........ L 71,176 70,662
Treasury stock at cost: 2,635,513 shares in 2006 and 2,635,114 shares in 2005 ...... {24,486) (24,475
Additional pald meapttal ... 6,551 5,494
Retained earnings . ...... ... ... ..o e ' ....... 219971 209,172
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .. ... ... oL il L S (3,452} {3,563)

Total shareholders’ equity . ... .....ceoeovernrenaeariinaraenns PO 269,760 257,290

§ 513,617 § 427,786

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

{In thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Years Ended September 30

BadES L e s

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

. i .. .
Selling, generalpand administrative expenses
Operating 1rilicomc

g
Interest expense .. ... .. ...l
Intérest income; .............................................
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiary ...............

Equity in net inicome of unconsolidated affiliates,net . ............... '

Income before income taxes
q
Provision for income taxes .................... e
Income from continuing operations ..................ieiiinann
Discontinued operations, net of tax (including gain on
disposal of $309 in 2006)

Jx [ T £ 1o00,) 1<

Diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding ......
Diluted earnings per common share:
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations .................. .

Basic weighted average number of common shares outstanding ........

Basic earnings per common share:
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations ....... ... oo iiiii i

Consclidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

2006 2005 2004
As Restated, As Restated,
See Note 1 See Note 1
$ 876,121 § 957,739 § 765,294
817,579 871,737 676,306
58,542 86,002 88,988
38,478 36,301 33,627
20,064 49,701 55,361
(5,349) (4,335) (3,290)
805 703 192
(931) (726) (624)
5,971 4,937 2,852
20,560 50,280 54,491
6,898 16,468 19,850
13,662 33,812 34,641
1,031 2,897 732
$ 14,693 36,709 35,373
13,117 - 13,098 11,533
$ 1.04 2.58 3.00
0.08 0.22 0.06
$ 1.12 2.80 3.07
12,956 12,894 11,284
$ 1.05 2.62 3.07
0.08 0.22 - 0.06
$ 1.13 2.85 3.13

' For the Years Ended September 30

2006 2005 2004

. As Restared, As Restated,

See Note 1 See Note 1
L [t 1T ' P $ 14,693 $ 36,709 $ 35373
Foreign currency translation adjustment ........... ... ... ... (15) 2,078 {936)

Change in unrealized gain or loss on cash flow hedges, net of tax

expense of $81 in 2006, $70 in 2005 and $92in 2004 ............. 126 115 160
Net other comprehensive income (loss) . ............ooio 111 2,193 (776)

Comprehensive Income .. ... .o $ 14,804 § 38902 $ 34,597

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

{In thousands, except per share amounts}

For the Years Ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Accumulated
Additional Other
Commeon Stock Treasury Stock  Paid-In  Retained Comprehensive
Shares  Amount  Shares Amount  Capital  Earnings Loss Total

Balances, September 30, 2003,
asrestated .. ... ...,
Net income, as restated .. ..........
Net issuance of common stock
under public offering ............
Net issuance of common stock
under incentive stock option plan ..
Tax effect of options exercised -
disqualifying dispesitions .........
Cash dividends on common stock
(8.20 pershare) ................
Foreign currency translation, as restated
Change in unrealized loss on cash
flow hedges, netoftax . ...........
Balances, September 30, 2004,
astestated ... ... ..
Net income, as restated ............
Net issuance of common stock
under incentive stock option plan ..
Tax effect of options exercised -
disqualifying dispositions .........
Cash dividends on common stock

($.25 pershare) ......... ... ...

Foreign currency translation, as restated

Change in unrealized gain on cash

flow hedges, netof tax .. .........
Balances, September 30, 2005,

asrestated . ....................
Netincome ........coveveveenonn
Net issuance of common stock

under restricted stock plan . ... ...
Net issuance of common stock

under incentive stock option.plan ..
Tax effect of options exercised -

disqualifying dispositions .........
Stock-based compensation expense . . .
Cash dividends on common stock

(830 pershare) ................

Foreign currency translation .. ......
Change in unrealized gain on cash
flow hedges, netof tax ...........

Balances, September 30,2006 . ... ...

9,765 $20,371 2,574 $(23,169) $5098 $142,566 $(4,980) $139,886
35,373 35,373

2905 47,322 47,322
134 1,773 53 (1,069 704
72 72

{2,254 (2,254)
{936) {936)

160 160

12,804 69,466 2,627 (24,238) 5,170 175,685 (5,756) 220,327
36,709 36,709

124 1,196 8 (237) 959
324 324

(3,222) ‘ (3,222)
2,078 2,078

115 115

12,928 70,662 2,635 (24,475) 5,494 209,172 (3,563) 257,290
14,693 14,693

47 514 1 (11) 503

277 277
780 780

(3,894) (3,894)
(15) (15)

126 126

13,055 871,176 2,636 $(24,486) $6,551 $219971 §(3,452) §269,760

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
R {In thousands)
For the Years Ended September 30
2006 2005 2004
As Restated, As Restated,
. See Note 1 See Note 1
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: .
JA LR e o3 1= S OO $§ 14693 ¢ 36,709 $§ 35373
. Adjustments to reconcile net income tonet cash . .......... ... .

. provided by operating activities: . .......... .. o i

; Deprcaatlon .............................................. 16,601 15,306 14,889
Stock-based]; compensatlon EXPENSE &\ vvverr s e 780 - C =
Deferred i INCOme tAXES ..o (1,040) (2,073) 2,076
Minority i 1nterest in income of consolidated subsidiary . ............. 931 726 624
Undlstrlbutcd equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates ....... (4,859) (4,937) {2,852)

] Provision fof bad debts ... ..ot 576 1,094 1,710

; Gain on sale'of Custom Steel ... ... ... i . (309) - -

1 Increase (dccrcase) in cash resulting from changesin: ...............

{ ’ Tradeaccountsrecewable...................................', 8,526 11,489 (51,248)

! _ Invcntoncs .............................................. (63,275) 58,146 (94,769)

‘) Prepaid c:xpenses And OthEr 2SSELS .+« v v vt e e eee et ie e 622 {(821) (2,021)

} - Accounts payable .. ... 1,104 (26,664) 39,467

| | Income taxes payable . ... ... . 2,020 (4,894) 7,145

| " Accrued Habilities . .. ..ot e e (770) 387 4,407

' Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities ................... {24,400) 84,468 {45,199)

! Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

1 Purchases of property, plant and equipment ...................... (16,955) (17,343) {17,255)

h Acquisition, net of cash acquired .. ... ... . ool (33,913} - -

" Net cash proceeds from sale of Custom Steel ..................... © 16,311 - ' -

'+ Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ............... - 602 ' -

| Repayment of advances to unconsolidated affiliate ................. - - 2,000 -
Other . e - - 211

' Net cash used in investing activities ....................coviiiien. (34,557} (14,741) (17,044)

A : :

| Cash Flows From Financing Activities: .. ........................ .

7' Proceeds from long-termdebt .......... o 64,000 88,000 88,000

L Prmcnpal payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations . . .. {34,649)  (122,000) (74,400)

Change inbank overdrafts .............. i ' 13,617 (5,247) 2,171

! Cash dividends on common stock ... ..o v e e (3,894) - (3,222) (2,254)
Net issuance of common stock ... ... .. . . .. . i, 503 959 48,026
Excess tax benefits from stock options ........... ... .. ..l ‘ 52 - -

‘ Er .. e e e 353 - 175

, Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ........ R, 39,982 (41,510} 61,718

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ... ......ooovvieiiiieo. .. 50 501 40

| Nét {decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents , . ........... .. ... (18,925) 28,718 - {485)

g Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ................ ... ... 30,991 2,273 2,758

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ........ ... ... . oo L § 12066 § 30991 § - 2273
Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures: )
Cash payments forinterest ........ ..o $ 6,130 § 3994 § 4,200
Cash payments for taxes ..........ccoiiiiiii i, $ 9,419 § 24971 § 10,941
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities: :

, Equipment acquired with capital lease obligations ................. $ 2989 § - 3 -
Fair value of assets acquired, net of cash acquired of 816 ............ $ 59,702 § - % -
Liabilities assumed . ..o v v e e e 25,789 - -
Net cashpaid ............. e e § 33913 § - § -

. The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements:

On Qctober 30, 2006, the Company announced that it would restate its previously issued consolidated financial
statements. The accompanying 2005 and 2004 consolldated financial statements have been restated. The nature of
restatements and the effect on the consolidated ﬁnancml statement line items are discussed in Note 22 In
addition, certain disclosures in the following notes have been restated consistent with the consolidated financial
statements.,

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: .

Description of the Business: Steel Technologies Inc is an intermediate steel processor engaged in the business of ¢
processing flat rolled steel to specified thickness, w1dth temper and finish requirements for customers’
manufacturing processes. A majority of its sales areI to 1ndustr1a1 customers in North America, manufacturing
component parts for use in the automotive industry: Steel Technologies Inc. operates in one reportable segment.

Prmczp[e.r of Consolidation: The consolidated finahcial statements include the accounts of Steel Technologies Inc.
and its majority-owned subsidiaries (the Company)| The Company’s investments in unconsolidated affiliates are
accounted for by the equity method based on the percentage of common ownership and control. All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminated,

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-
term maturity of the securities. Checks issued but not presented to banks results in overdraft balances for
accounting purposes and are classified as 4 current liability.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable: The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. The allowance is
maintained at a level considered approprlatc based on historical and other factors that affect collectibility. The
factors include historical trends of write-offs, sales, recovenes and credit losses; the monitoring of portfolio credit
quality; and current and projected economic and market conditions. If the financial condition of the Company’s
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an 1mpan"ment of the ability to make payments beyond previously
established terms, additional allowances may be requ1red Uncollectible accounts receivable are written off agamst
the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable when management determines that the probability of payment is
remote and collections efforts have ceased.

Inventories: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the specific
identification method for all inventories.

Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortlzatlon is computed using the straight-line method with
the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements .. ...... .. 1025 years
o Machinery and equipment {............ 3-12 years
Intangible assets ... ... ...|ooeiiiinnn, 5-35 years

When properties are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts with any resulting gain or loss reflected in results of operations. Maintenance and repairs are
expensed in the year incurred. The Company capitalizes interest costs as part of the cost of constructing major
facilities. Interest costs of $410,000, $290,000 and $178 000 were capitalized in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets: We review the carrying value of our long-lived assets for impairment whenever changes in
events and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. If an evaluation
were requlrcd the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with an asset would be compared to the
asset’s carrying value to determine if a write-down to market value or undiscounted cash flows value is required.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prlce over the fair value of net assets acquired through
acquisitions accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intanngle Assets,” goodwill is no longer amortized but is tested
for impairment annually using a fair-value based approach The annual impairment test was performed during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 and no impairments were indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

' Income Taxes: The Company recognizes an asset or liability for the deferred tax consequences of temporary
différences between the tax bases of assets or liabilities and their reported amounts in the consolidated financial

X statements. These temporary differences will result in taxable or deductible-amounts in future years when the

i reported amounts of the assets or liabilities are recovered or settled, A valuation allowance is provided against

: these deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be

l, realized. The Company also maintains reserves assoctated with various tax return positions that in management's

" judgment are not probable of being sustained and other tax related matters.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue for the sale of Company-owned products when
persuasive evrdence of an arrangement exists, the customer takes title to goods shipped and risk of ownership
passes to the customcr the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the relevant receivable is probable.
The Company r recognizes revenue from toll processing services upon completion of the services and shipment of
goods. Sales returns and allowances are recorded as reductions to sales and are provided for based on historical
experience and current customer activities.

Shipping and- Handlmg Fees and Costs: Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are included in sales and
shipping and handling costs incurred by the Company are included in cost of goods sold.

Advertising Expense: The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.

: Stock-Based Compensation: As discussed in Note 17 of our Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the

1 Company adopted Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payments,” on

-~ October 1, 2005. Prior to fiscal 2006, as permitted by SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”
and amended by SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatron—Transmon and Disclosure," the
Company followed the provisions of Accountmg Prmcrples Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for its stock option plans under the intrinsic value based
method. Accordmgly, no stock-based compensation expense was recognized for stock options issued under the plans
as all stock optlons granted under the plans had an exercise prrce at least equal to the market value of the underlying

t common stock on the date of grant. Had compensation expense been determined based on the fair value of the

i stock options at the grant date consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, the Company's net income and basic

and'diluted net income per common share for fiscal 2005 and 2004 would have been affected as follows:

For the Years Ended

. September 30
) k ‘ 2005 2004
As Restared, As Restated, -

(In thousands, except per share amounts) See Note t See Note 1

| Netincome - asreported ............. .. ... ... P $ 36,709 $ 35,373

_+ Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined ‘

i under fair value based method for all awards, netof taxes ........... ... ..., 205 395

: Net income - pro forma ..................... e $ 36,504 § 34,978

* Diluted net income per common share - as reported . ... ... i $ 280 8 307
Diluted net income per common share - proforma . ....... ... .. ... ... ... $ 279 % 3.03
Basic net income per common share -as reported ... ... ... oo oo $ 28 % 3.13
Basic net income per comnmon share - proforma ........... . ... . .. $ 283 8§ 310

Séf—]mumnce; The Company is self-insured for employees’ medical benefits and participates in an insurance
captive for workers’ compensation, general liability and automobile insurance claims, with stop-loss coverage
provided by a commercial insurer. The Company maintains an accrual for the estimated cost to settle open claims
as well as an estimate of the cost of claims that have been incurred but not reported. These estimates take into
account valuations from third party actuaries, current and historical trends and changes in our business and
workforce. The accruals for self-insurance could be affected if future occurrences and claims are different from
assumptions used and historical trends.

Earnings Per Common Share: Earnings per common share for all periods presented have been calculated and
presented in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic earnings per common share excludes
dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per common share reflect the potential dilution that
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock
or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foreign Currency Translation: The Mexican subs1d1ary uses the peso as the functional currency and the assets
and liabilities of the Mexican subsidiary are translated into U.S. dollars at the year-end rate of exchange, and
revenues and expenses are translated at average rates of exchange in effect during the period, Resultlng translation
adjustments are reported as a component of comprchcnswc income. Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) are
included in sales when incurred and were $476, 000, ($855,000) and $468,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Comprebensive Loss: Accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of the following:

September 30
2006 2005
As Restated,
(In thousands} See Note 1
Cumulative translation adjustment . ... ... ... . $ 3693 § 3,678
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, netof tax............. ..o o Ll (241) (115)

$ 3452 § 3,563

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications were made to conform prior year financial statements to the current
year with no effect on net income or shareholders’ equity. Such reclassifications included approximately $1,016,000
reclassified from current deferred income tax assets to deferred income tax liabilities as of September 30, 2005.

3. Acquisitions:

On May 8, 2006, the Company {through its wholly owned subsidiary) acquired all of the outstanding stock of
privately held Kasle Steel Corporation (Kasle Steel) headquartered in Dearborn, Michigan. The Company
acquired Kasle Steel to expand value-added steel processing capabilities to include exposed automotive blanking.
Including its unconsolidated affiliates, Kasle Steel is North America’s largest independent supplier of automotive
steel blanks. Kasle Steel’s wholly owned operations include operations in Flint, Michigan and Windsor, Ontario.
Its three unconsolidated affiliates consist of a 50% interest in RSDC of Michigan, L.L.C. in Holt, Michigan; a
50% interest in Kasle Metal Processing, LLC in Jeffersonville, Indiana; and a 49% interest in Delaco-Kasle LLC, a
certified minority-owned business in Woodhaven, Michigan.

The Company paid approximately $33,913,000 in cash for the stock of Kasle Steel and assumed approximately
825,789,000 of Kasle Steel’s liabilities. In conjunction with the purchase, the Company retired approximately
83,970,000 of Kasle Steel’s debt. The Company utilized its existing revolving credit facility to provide funding
for the purchase.

Under the terms of the agreement, $2,000,000 of the purchase price was deposited in an escrow account to satisfy
indemnification provisions provided by former sharcholders of Kasle Steel to the Company. All uncontested escrowed
funds will be distributed to the former shareholders at various times from November 2007 through May 2012.

The acquisition has been recorded under the purchase method of accounting, with the operating results being
included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. Accordingly, the
purchase price has been preliminarily allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on the estimated
fair values at the date of acquisition. Such preliminary estimates will be adjusted once final valuations are derived,
with any adjustment also affecting the carrying value of goodwill. The Company used third party specialist firms
to assist in determining the fair value of the assets acquired. The purchase price exceeded the estimated fair values
of the net tangible assets acquired by approximately $17,638,000. We preliminarily allocated this excess purchase
price to an other intangible asset of $1,500,000, associated deferred tax liabilities of $549,000, and non-deductible
goodwill of $16,687,000. The other intangible asset consisted of a non-competition agreement to be amortized
over five years,

—

e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following summarizes the allocation of the purchase price of Kasle Steel to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed:

(In thousands}

Working capital . ... .. e e $ 234
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates . . ... ... ... 33,584
Property, plant and equipment . .. ... .. 2,753
GoodWIll, L L e e e e 16,687
Intangible asset subject to amortization . . ........ . .. e e 1,500
Other current and long-term assets . . . ... ... .. 2,039
Deferred tax habxhty, 3L =1 SR (7,842)
Drebt and capltal lease obligations .. ....... ...l (8,562)
Other current and long-term fiabiliies . ... ... (6,480)
Purchase prlée .................................................................. $ 33,913

The fair valuc recorded by the Company for investments in unconsolidated affiliates exceeds the proportionate
share of the Companys net book value by approximately $10,400,000. The resulting basis difference has been
allocated among long-lived assets and intangible assets based on their relative fair value at the acquisition date,

This basis dlffcrentla.l 1s amortized using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of these long-lived
assets and mtanglblc assets. The Company is depreciating the acquired long-lived assets over a longer period than
that of the unconsolidated affiliate. During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded an approximately $577,000 increase
in equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net as a result of this amortization.

The following pro forma consolidated results of operations have been prepared as if the acquisition of Kasle
Steel had occurred as of the beginning of each respective period.

- Year Ended September 30
(In thousands, except per share amounts) : 2006 2005 2004
Sales ... $§ 889,560 & 981,839 § 811,406
Netincome ... ... ... .. . e 14,650 40,726 38,861
Diluted net income per common share ..................... ... ... $ 112§ 318 337
Basic net income per commonshare ....... ... oo oo $ 113 % 316 $ 344

This pro forma inforniation is presented for informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of
future operating results. ,

4, Discontinued Operations:;

On March 24, 2006, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement to sell all the capital stock of its
wholly owned Custom Steel, Inc. (Custom Steel) subsidiary to a wholly owned subsidiary of American Railcar

Industries, Inc. (ARI). Custom Steel operates a facility located in Kennett, Missouri adjacent to ARI’s component .

manufacturing facility that produces value-added fabricated steel parts that primarily support ARTs railcar
manufacturing operations. Substantially all of Custom Steel’s sales are to ARI

In connection with the closing of this transaction, the final sales price was approximately $17,061,000, of which
$16,311,000 was remitted to the Company and an additional $750,000 to a third party escrow agent. In addition,
the Company retained certain obligations consisting primarily of trade accounts payable, accrued liabilities and
deferred taxes totaling approximately $3,012,000.

Under the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement, the Company has agreed to indemnify ARI for any required
payments to be made by ARI for liabilities incurred by the Company prior to March 31, 2006. The
indemnification provisions for most liabilities expire on March 31, 2008 and require the buyer to incur at least
$75,000 in aggregate liabilities before a claim can be asserted. Indemnification provisions for certain liabilities,
primarily taxes, expire with applicable statutes of limitations and the remaining provisions, primarily
environmental, do not expire. The Company has not recorded any liabilities for these indemnifications since
management has determined it is not probable the Company will incur such liabilities. Pursuant to the terms of an
Escrow Agreement, ARI deposited $750,000 in an escrow account that will be distributed to the Company at
various times prior to September 30, 2007 to the extent there are no indemnification claims made by ARIL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the sale
of Custom Steel has been accounted for as a discontinued operation. Accordingly, the results of operations and the
gain on the sale have been classified as discontinued operations, net of income taxes, in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income. Interest expense on debt that cannot be attributed to other operations of the
Company has been allocated to discontinued operations. .

Summarized condensed consolidated income statement information of Custom Steel follows:

Year Ended September 30
(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004
T T $ 23470 & 44,052 3 21,558
Income before INCOME tAXES . . oo\t vn ittt it et e ea e 1,154 4,456 1,123
Income from continuing Operations . . ...........vvverrreennnen.. 722 2,897 732
Gain on sale, net of income taxes . ............... e 309 - -
B T Voo o1 1,031 2,897 732

A summary of the assets and liabilities of Custom Steel held for sale follows:

SeEtember 30

{In thousands) 2005
TOVEMOIIES & v v e vt et ettt e e e e e e e e e e e $ 7,295
Property, plant and equipment, net . ... .. 4,009
GoodWill ..ttt e e e e e 9,157
(D T3 T o - P 14
Assets held for sale ...t e e s 20,475
Accrued liabilities . ......... O S 14
Deferred income tax liability ... ... 185
Liabilities associated with assets held forsale . ... .. .. .. ... ... o it .. 199
Net assets held forsale .. ........ e e e e e e § 20,276

5. Inventories:

Inventories consist of:

September 30
(In thousands) 2006 2005
Raw materials . ..o vt et ettt e e $129427 & 79,813
Finished goods and work in process . ......... ... 51,840 34,315

$ 181,267 $ 114,128

6. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation consist of the following:

. September 30

{In thousands} - 2006 2005
Land and Improvements .. ......ooivteeiien i FR $ 6,495 § 6,232
Buildings and Improvements . ......... ..o 73,446 70,398
Machinery and equipment .. ... 176,410 153,505
CONSITUCHION 1IN PLOZIESS . .ttt sttt e e s aies e ra e a i ieen s 3,103 7,597

259,454 237,732
Less accumulated depreciation ....... .. o o oo [ 146,812 131,240

$112,642 $ 106,492
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7. Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

Approximately $27,053,000 and $8,991,000, or 5.3% and 2.1%, of our total assets as of September 30, 2006 and

2005, respectively, consists of unamortized intangible assets and goodwill. A summary of changes in our goodwill
and other intangible assets for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 follows:

Net Amount at Net Amount at
1 September 30, : September 30,
(In thousands) | 2005 and 2004 Acquisition Amortization 2006
Goodwill ., ... . ..o i 8991 $ 16,687 $ - $ 25,678
Definite lived intangible asset. .. ............... - - 1,500 _ (125) 1,375
Total .. ... e i $ 8,991 $ 18,187 § {125) $ 27,053

The deﬁmtc hvcd intangible asset will be amortized over a weighted average life of 4.6 years and will result in
amortization expense of $300,000 per year from 2007 to 2010 and $175,000 in 2011.
‘ il
8. Investmentl.r_. in Unconsolidated Affiliates:
;
Summar'm:d' condensed consolidated income statement information of Mi-Tech Steel, Inc. (Mi-Tech Steel), 2
50% owned unconsolidated affiliate, the three Kasle Steel unconsolidated affiliates (see Note 3) and Ferrolux Metals
Co.; LLC, a 49% owned unconsolidated affiliate, all accounted for using the equity method of accounting, follows:

September 30

Balance Sheets (In thousands) 2006 2005
Assets :

IO B85S « . v v v e ettt ettt e e e et e et e e e e e e e $123,936 § 83,244

Otherassets ......... e e 99,449 35,224
Liabilities:

Current Habilifies ... ..o oottt e e 73,763 37,606

Long-term Liabilitles .. ...\ vu ettt it e e e 37,768 30,502

For the Years Ended September 30

Statements of Income (Ia thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Netsales ... it e e, $ 307,195 $302,325 $ 214,665
Gross Profit e s 29,694 27,584 18,552

Netincome .. ... e EEERRS 11,954 9,886 5,717

The Company’s equity in undistributed net income of its unconsolidated affiltates, net was $19,227,000 and
$14,213,000 at Septémber 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company received distributions of approximately
$1,111,000, $211,000 and $45,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. While distributions from Mi-Tech Steel
are permitted if authorized by Mi-Tech Steel’s Board of Directors, such distributions are restricted by one of
Mi-Tech Steel’s:loan agreements by limiting distributions to 15% of Mi-Tech Steel’s net income in any fiscal year.

The Company has various other transactions with its unconsolidated affiliates. Both the Company and the
unconsolidated affiliates buy and sell products and services at prevailing market prices from each other. Bcginning
in February 2005, the Company incurred expenses from Mi-Tech Steel for toll processing and storage services
prov1ded at its Decatur, Alabama facility at agreed upon rates. Prior to February 2005, Mi-Tech Steel was
reimbursed for operating costs incurred at its Decatur, Alabama facility by its owners. Equity in the net income of
Mi-Tech Steel and management fee income are also included in operating income of the Company. A summary of
transactions between the Company and its unconsolidated affiliates during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 follows:

For the Years Ended September 30

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Sales to unconsolidated affiliates .. ............... e $§ 4190 $ 3,736 § 2,881
Purchases from and expense reimbursements to Mi-Tech Steel ......... - 1,729 2,102 1,688
Interest income from Mi-Tech Steel ........................... L. - 72 67

Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net ................. 5,971 4,937 2,852
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As a result of the transactions above, accounts receivable from unconsolidated affiliates was $741,000 and
$302,000 as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Accounts payable to unconsolidated affiliates was
$235,000 and $103,000 as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

9. Long-term Debt: A ,

Long-term debt consists of the fo'llowing:

September 30
. (In thousands) ’ ' 2006 2005
Notes payable to bank, unsecured under current line of credit;
interest rates at September 30, 2006 ranged from 6.77% to 8.25%
and at September 30,2005 was 4.29% . ... ..o $ 64,000 § 30,000
Series A Senior Notes payable, unsecured, due October 2011;
interest due semiannually at 5.33% ... ... 10,000 10,000
Series B Senior Notes payable, unsecured, due October 2014, :
interest due semiannually at 5.75% ... ... o 40,000 40,000
Payables to former shareholders of Kasle Steel, unsecured,
due from January 2010 to May 2017; monthly payments of
$46,000 including interest ranging from 5.82% to 7.00% and
an annual principal payment of $350,000 plus interestat 9.00% ................. 4,443 -
L 1 T A 69 -
118,512 80,000
Less amounts due withinoneyear ... ... . ... o i 776 -

$117,736 § 80,000

In September 2004, the Company entered into a $135,000,000 unsecured revolving credit facility with its existing
bank group. In October 2005, the Company amended its facility to extend the maturity date to October 2010 and
improve interest rates. Under certain circumstances, the facility can be expanded to $200,000,000. Interest on the
facility is paid with various variable options on the interest rate, none of which are greater than the bank’s prime.
The Company can elect to use both the LIBOR based interest rate and the prime interest rate on its outstanding
borrowings under the agreement. At September 30, 2006, there was $64,000,000 outstanding on this credit facilicy.

In October 2004, the Company issued $50,000,000 in unsecured senior notes. The notes are comprised of
$10,000,000 of 5.33% Series A Senior Notes due October 21, 2011 and $40,000,000 of 5.75% Series B Senior
Notes due October 21, 2014,

Provisions contained in the Company’s revolving credit facility and unsecured senior notes require the Company
to maintain specified levels of net worth, maintain certain financial ratios and limit capital expenditures, operating
leases, capital leases and additional debt. The Company estimates that the fair value of fixed interest debt
instruments approximates $54,518,000 at September 30, 2006. The fair value of the Company’s debt is estimated
based on: quoted market rates or current rates offered to the Company on comparable remaining maturities.

The aggregate amount of all long-term debt to be repaid for the years following September 30, 2006 is {in
thousands):

2007 ... e, $ 776
2008 ..t 731
2009 ... e 755
2000 ... 781
2011 ... e " 64,333
Thereafter ................ .. ...... 51,136

$ 118,512
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10. Leases:

The Company leases certain equipment under various capital lease agreements. Future minimum lease
payments at September 30, 2006 under non-cancelable capital leases with an original term exceeding one year are
as follows (in thousands):

2007 ..o $ 1,512

2008 . 1,109

2009 . 741

2010 341

i 2011 ... 128

i Thereafter ....... B 34

j Total ..o 3,865

E Less amounts representing interest ... .. (392)

3,473

Less current portion of obligation

under capital leases ............... 1,298
Long-term portion of obligations -

under capital lease ............. ... $ 2,175

|
Assets of $4, 102 000 are held under capital leases and are included in property, plant and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet, less accumulated depreciation of $155, OOO as of September 30, 2006.
There were no asscts held under capital leases as of Septcmbcr 30, 2005.
The Company also leases certain property and equipment from third parties under non-cancelable operating
lease agreements. Rent expense under operating leases was $2,259,000, §1,997,000 and $1,767,000 in 2006, 2005
- and 2004, respectively. Future minimum lease payments at September 30, 2006 for non-cancelable operating leases
with an original term in excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):

2007 ... e 8 880
2008 ... 717
2009 ... 390
2000 ... 19
Total ... ..o ] 2,006

11. Financial Instruments:

In order to mitigatc a portion of the market risk on its variable rate debt, the Company entered into an interest
rate swap contract with a major financial institution on June 20, 2005. The interest rate swap contract began
December 8, 2005. Under the terms of the contract, which matures in September 2008, the Company will receive
a LIBOR based variable interest rate {5.39% at September 30, 2006) and pay a fixed interest rate of 4.31% on a
notional amount of $30,000,000. The Company also entered into an interest rate swap contract in August 2001.
Under the terms of this contract, which matured in February 2004, the Company received a LIBOR based variable
rate and paid a fixed interest rate of 4.48% on a notional amount of $15,000,000. The variable interest rates paid
on these contracts are determined based on LIBOR on the last day of the applicable borrowing period, which is
consistent with the variable rate determination on the underlying debt.

SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended, establishes accounting
and reporting standards requmng that every derivative financial instrument be recorded on the balance sheet at its
fair value. SFAS No. 133 requires all derivatives be recogmzed as either assets or labiliries in the balance sheet at
their fair value, and sets forth the manner in which gains and losses thereon are to be recorded. The treatment of
such gains or losses 1s dependent upon the type of exposure, if any, for which the derivative is designated as a
hedge. Gains and losses for qualifying hedges can be deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income and
recognized in the income statement along with the related results of the hedged item. SFAS No. 133 requires that
the Company formally document, designate and assess the effectiveness of such transactions in order to qualify for
hedge accounting treatment.
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The Company designated cach interest rate swap contract as a cash flow hedge of anticipated interest payments
under its variable rate line of credit agreement. Gains and losses are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income and are reclassified into net income as interest expense, net in the periods in which the related variable
- interest is paid. The Company estimates that the fair value of the interest rate swap contract approximates
$392,000 at September 30, 2006. The fair value of this contract debt is estimated based on quoted market rates on
contracts with comparable remaining maturities. The Company expects to reclassify approximately $126,000 of
the $241,000 recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss into net income as a reduction of interest expense,

during fiscal 2007,

12. Shareholders’ Equity:

In April 1998, the Company adopted a shareholder rights plan by declaring a dividend of one right for each
share of Common Stock outstanding payable to shareholders of record on May 14, 1998, Each right entitles
shareholders to buy one one-hundredth of a share of Series A junior participating preferred stock for $50 per share.
The rights may be exercised only if a person or group acquires 20% or more of the outstanding shares of common -
stock or announces a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in ownership of 20% or more of the common
stock. The rights currently trade with the Company's common stock and may be redeemed by the Board of
Directors for one cent per right until they become exercisable, and thereafter under certain circumstances. The
rights expire in 2008.

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation authorized 500,000 shares of no par value preferred stock, of which
200,000 shares have been reserved and designated Series A 1998 junior participating preferred stock for possible
issuance under the Company’s shareholder rights plan. As of September 30, 2006, no preferred shares have been issued.

13. Retirement Plan:

The Company maintaing a 401(k) defined contribution pension plan. Annual expense provisions are based
upon the level of employee participation as the plan requires the Company to match a certain portion of the
employees’ contributions. Total retirement plan expense was $1,351,000, $1,378,000 and $1,140,000 in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The Company follows the policy of funding retirement plan contributions as accrued.

14, Income Taxes:

The following table represents the components of the provision for income taxes:

For the Years Ended September 30

2006 2005 2004

As Restated, As Restated,

(In thousands) ’ See Note 1 See Note 1
Current: '

Federal ... . e $ 2,760 $ 14,448 § 15541

Stateand local .............. e e 456 1,460 1,872

Forelgn .. ... e 4,785 2,517 . B30

. 8,001 18,425 18,243

Deferred:

Federal ... i s e 14 (436) (751)

Stateand local ... ... .. i U ' 2 (31) (59)

Foreign . ... e (1,119) . (1,490) 2,417

(1,103) - (1,957) 1,607
$ 6,898 § 16,468 § 19,850

Net income before income taxes in the United States was 87,463,000, $42,779,000 and $45,691,000 in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Net income before income taxes in Canada and Mexico, on a combined basis, was

$13,097,000, $7,501,000 and $8,800,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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The Company’s share of undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiary of appi’oximately
$33,287,000 and $24,101,000 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively, are considered to be indefinitely

reinvested. Accordingly, no provision for deferred taxes on those undistributed earnings has been made. Upon
distribution of those earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, the earnings may become taxable.
Deferred income taxes are recorded at currently enacted rates and result from temporary differences in the
- carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for tax and financial statement purposes. ‘The primary temporary
differences giving rise to the Company’s deferred tax assets and Habilities are as follows:

September 30 ll
2006 2005 l
: As Restated, \
{In thousands) . . Sec Note 1 !
Deferred tax assets:
IVENTOTY ottt et e $ - 8 116 :
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable .. .. ... .. e 808 584 :
Accrued labilities . ... ot e 2,948 1,103 :
Property, plant and equipment ... oo 729 713 .
Net operating loss carryforward .. ... oo oo o oo 1,185 - !
DT o 121 54 :
Total deferred tax assets . ... ... it e 5,791 2,570 :
Less: valuation allowance . . ... ..ottt inri et et {1,185) - i
Netdeferred taxassets .......... . .. . ... 4,606 2,570 i
Deferred tax liabilities: ' . 5
Property, plant and equipment . .. .. ... 3,084 3,937 |
INVentory .. ..o e 4,735 5,624 :
Investment inpartnership ... o 3,497 4,287 .
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates . ... ...... ... .. ... .. .. ... 11,653 366 !
Other o e e 192 70
Total deferred tax Liabilities . .. ..ot o e e e 23,161 14,284
Net deferred tax liabilities . . . .. ..o . e $ 18,555 & 11,714

At September 30, 2006, the Company had tax benefits for Canadian net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $1,185,000 that expire from fiscal 2008 to fiscal 2010. These net operating loss carryforwards are
subject to utilization limitations. A valuation allowance of 1,185,000 has been recognized to offset the deferred
tax assets related to the net operating loss carryforwards as the Company has determined that it is more likely than
not that there will not be sufficient taxable income in future years to utilize the net operating loss carryforwards.

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes with amounts computed by applying the federal statutory rate
to income before income taxes follows:

For the Years Ended September 30

2006 2005 2004
As Restated,  As Restated, !
See Nore 1 See Note 1 ’

Tax at U.S. federal statutoryrate . ... .. .. .. ... ... .. ... . . ....... 34.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State and local income taxes, net of U.S. federal tax benefit ............. 3.8 24 2.8 '
Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net ................. (2.5) (2.8) (1.4) '
Revision of priof year income tax eStimates ............cccovvuuen... (0.5) 0.8 0.2 f
Effect of foreign income taxed at differentrates ., .................... (4.1) (3.3) 0.1 :
Non-deductible incentive stock options . ............ ..o, 2.0 !

Oher, NEE ottt et e e e e 0.9 0.7 (0.3)

33.6% 32.8% 36.4%
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15.Segment Information:

The Company operates in one reportable segment as an intermediate processor of flat rolled steel. Sales are
attributed to countries based on the location of the facility which fulfilled the customer’s order. The following
table summarizes the Company’s sales by geographic region in 2006, 2005 and 2004.

(In thousands) ) 2006 * 2005 2004

United States . . .......oovvivivinn. e $ 713,784 $ 811,784 § 663,516

Canada and Mexico . ..ottt it e 162,337 145,955 101,778
Total o e e $ 876,121 $ 957,739 § 765,294

The following table summarizes the Company’s long-lived assets by geographic region at September 30, 2006
and 2005.

(In thousands} ) 2006 2005

United States .. ................... e e $ 125,480 $ 104,693

Canada and Mexico . ... ... i i e e 12,840 10,790
T 1 $ 138,320 8§ 115,483

16. Contingencies:

From time to time, in the normal course of business, the Company is involved in certain litigation and claims
pending with respect to various business matters. In the event there is any resulting liability with respect to such
claims, it is management’s opinion they will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.

17. Stock Option Plans:

The Company granted incentive stock options to employees to purchase shares at not less than 100% of market
value at date of grant or non-qualified stock options at a price determined by the Compensation Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors. Generally, options were exercisable at the rate of 20% a year beginning one year
from date of grant and expired ten years from the date of grant. On November 4, 2005, the remaining 91,000
shares available were granted at an average exercise price of §25.42.

On January 26, 2006, the shareholders of the Company voted to adopt the 2006 Restricted Stock Plan {the
2006 Plan), which was previously approved by the Board of Directors on November 4, 2005. The 2006 Plan
authorizes the award of up to 300,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, no par value, which may be
awarded as authorized, but unissued, shares. The terms of any award of shares will be determined by the
Compensation Committee in its sole discretion at the time of the award. Unless otherwise specified by the
Committee, none of the shares awarded shall be restricted for a period of less than one year or more than ten years.
The number of shares that may be awarded to any single employee will not be limited by the 2006 Plan. On April
27, 2006, 80,000 restricted shares were granted under the 2006 Plan, which vest at a rate of 33.33% a year over
three years. On July 27, 2006, 5,000 restricted shares were granted under the 2006 Plan, which vest at a rate of
20% a year over five years.

On October 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” using the modified
prospective transition method. Under this method, compensation cost is recognized for all share-based payments
granted this fiscal year and for all unvested awards granted to employees prior to the adoption of SFAS No.
123(R). The Company recognizes compensation expense for stock option grants on a graded-vesting basis over the
employee’s vesting period. In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, the financial statements
for prior periods have not been restated.

Since all outstanding options are incentive stock options, the Company does not receive any income tax
deductions for options granted unless there is an exercise and disqualifying disposition of those shares as defined
under current tax laws. Upon the occurrence of a disqualifying disposition, the Company recognizes the income
tax benefit that corresponds to the cumulative book compensation cost as a reduction to income tax expense and
any excess benefits are recorded as an addition to additional paid-in capital.
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As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R}, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense included
in selling, general and administrative expenses of $780,000 in 2006. In addition, the Company recognized an
income tax benefit for disqualifying dispositions of stock options of $84,000 in 2006, of which approximately
$32,000 was recorded as a reduction in income tax expense during fiscal 2006.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions for the options granted on November 4, 2005:

Expected dividend yield ..................... . 1.4%

Expected stock price volatility ................. 46.0%
:* Weighted average risk-free interestrate . ......... 4.6%
; Expected life of options (years) ................ 6.5

i
it

The assumptions for expected dividend yield, expected stock price volatility and expected life of options are
based on historical trends. The weighted average risk-free interest rate is based on a traded zero-coupon U.S.
Treasury bond with a term equal to the option’s expected life. The weighted average fair value for the options
granted during 2006 using the assumptions listed above was $11.52 per share. There were no options granted
during 2005 and 2004. :

The summary of the status of all of the Company's stock incentive plans as of September 30, 2006, 2005 and
2004 and changes during the years then ended is presented below:

Weighted
Shares Under Average
? ' Plans Exercise Price
Balance, September 30,2003 ... ... .. oo oo 614,265 § 916
Granted . .o e e e e e - -
Exercised ..o o e e e e (182,006) $ 9.27
Canceled ....... ... .. . i i e - -
Balance, September 30,2004 .. ... ... ... 432,259 $§ 911
Granted ......... .. ... oo e S - -
Exercised . ... i i e (127,759) $ 8.60
Canceled . ... e e - -
Balance, September 30,2005 .. ..., .. i 304,500 $ 9.32
Granted . . ... ... 91,000 $2542
Exercised . ... ... ... (42,400) $ 9.10
Canceled . ... (14,700) $ 18.00
Balance, September 30,2006 ......... . ... i 338,400 . $13.30
Shares Weighted Weighted Aggregate
Outstanding _ Average Average Intrinsic Aggregate
Under Exercise Contractual Value Per Intrinsic
. Plans Price Term Share® Value®
Options outstanding at
September 30,2006 . ......... 338,400 $ 13.30 5.56 years £ 7.76 $ 2,626,000
Options exercisable at
September 30,2006 ......... 188,000 $ 885 4.01 years $ 10.78 $ 2,026,000
Options vested and : : :
expected tovest ............. 338,400 $ 13.30 5.56 years $ 7.76 $ 2,626,000

w Computcd based upon the amount by which the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at September 30, 2006 of $19.63 per

share exceeded the weighted average exercise price.
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The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $636,000, $2,559,000 and $2,025,000 for 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. All unexercised options expire from 2008 to 2015.
The summary of restricted stock as of September 30, 2006 and changes during the year are presented below:

Restricted
Stock
Balance, September 30,2005 ...... e -
Granted . ... viv i e 85,000
| Exercised ...... [ ...................... -
Forfeited ...... b (5,000)
‘ Balance, Septemb’er 30,2006 ........... .. 80,000

Total compensation costs related to non-vested options and restricted stock awards not yet recognized was
approximately $2,234,000 at September 30 2006. We expect to recognize this compensation cost as follows using
the graded vesting method over a welghted average period of 1.86 years:

; Amount
2007 ...l $ 937,000
2008 ... 774,000
2009 ...l 441,000
2010 ... 61,000
2011 . 21,000
Total ...t $ 2,234,000

18. Net Income Per Share Computations:
: F

The following is a reconciliation of thé numerator of the basic and diluted per share computations:

!

; ' , For the Years|Ended September 30

2006 .| 2005 2004
) As Restated, As Restated,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) See Note 1 See Note 1
Nl ICOMIE .« o oo ot ittt e ittt et et e e $ 14,693 § 36,709 § 35,373
Shares (denominator) used for diluted per common share computations:
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding ............. 12,956 12,894 11,284
Plus: dilutive effect of stock options ............. ... ..o 161 204 249
Adjusted weighted average shares i........... ... ... ...l 13,117 | 13,098 = 11,533
Shares {denominator) used for basic pér common share computations:
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding ............. 12,956 12,894 11,284
Net income per common share amounts:
|
Diluted earnings per common share: i
From continuing operations ............ooiiiiiiiiiiii $ 104 § 258 ¢ 3.00
From discontinued operations ........... ... ... 0 i 0.08 l 0.22 0.06

3 1.12 § 2380 § 3.07

Basic carﬁings per common share: ' 1
From continuing operations .......i... .ol 3 105 § 262 % 3.07
From discontinued Operations ... ..........co.uuuueeeeneiiei.., 008 | 022 0.06
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Options to purchase 83,500 shares for the year ended September 30, 2006 were excluded from the calculation
above because the exercise prices of the options were greater than the average market price of the Company’s stock
during the periods. All outstanding options are included in the diluted earnings per common share calculation
above for the years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004.

19. Related Party Transactions:

The Company has various transactions with its unconsolidated affiliates (see Note 8). Also, the Company has
recorded sales of $13,884,000, $17,764,000 and $18,36%,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and has
accounts receivable of $1 084,000 and $2,508,000 as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively, for scrap
products sold to a company owncd by an ofﬁccr and director of the Company. Management reports these
transactions to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors as frequently as requested by the Committee, but at
least annually. Most recently, in April 2006, the Audit Committee reviewed and approved these transactions. The
Company has the ability to continue or cease selling scrap steet to this company at any time.

20. Major Custt}mers:

Sales to one customer accounted for approximately 12% of the Company’s sales in fiscal 2006 and 2005. No
single customer accounted for more than 10% of our sales in fiscal 2004. The loss of this customer could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

21. impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

In June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on EITF 06-03, “How Taxes
Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income
Statement (That Is, Gross Versus Net Presentation)”. EITF 06-03 requires that any tax assessed by a
governmental authority that is imposed concurrent with or subsequent to a revenue-producing transaction between
a seller and a customer should be presented on a gross (included in revenues and costs) or a net (excluded from
revenues) basis. In addition, for any such taxes that are reported on a gross basis, a company should disclose the
amounts of those taxes in interim and annual financial statements for each period for which an income statement is
presented if those amounts are significant. The requirements of EITF 06-03 are effective for us beginning fanuary
1, 2007. We are in the process of evatuating the effect of EITF 06-03 and have not determined whether its
adopnon will have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48),
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109”. FIN 48 clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on dcrccognltlon classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The requirements of FIN 48 are effective for our fiscal
year beginning October 1, 2007. We are in the process of evaluating the effect of FIN 48 and have not determined
whether its adoption will have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
108 (SAB 108), "Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements ‘when C@antlfymg Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements”. SAB 108 was issued in order to climinate the diversity of practice
surrounding how public companies quantify financial statement misstatements. Traditionally, there have been two
w1dely—rcc0gm?ed methods for quantifying the effects of financial statement misstatements: the “roll-over”
method and the “iron-curtain” method. The roll-over method focuses pnmanly on the impact of a misstatement
on the income statement — including the reversing effect of prior year misstatements — but its use can lead to the
accumulation of misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron-curtain method, on the other hand, focuses
primarily on the effect of correcting the period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of

———
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]
prior year errors on the income statement, In SAB 108, the SEC staff established an appmdch that requires
quanuﬁcatlon of financial statement misstatements based on the effects of the misstatements on each of the
ompany s financial statements and the related financial statement disclosures. This model is commonly referred to
as a "dual approach” because it requires quannﬁcat:on of errors under both the iron-curtain and the roll-over
methods. The Company is required to apply the provisions of SAB 108 for our fiscal year that began
Qctober 1, 2006. ' ~
: i
22. Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements:

|

On October 30, 2006, the Company announced that it would restate its previously 1ssued consolidated financial
statements. Management of the Company became aware that it had incorrectly recorded certam deferred tax
assets and liabilities resultmg in an overstatement of income tax expense of approximately 51 031,000 and an
understatement of net income from contmumg operations of approx1marely $1,003,000 between January 1, 1999
and June 30, 2006. For the nine months ended June 30, 2006, income tax expense was understated by
approximately $1,148,000 and net income from continuing operations was overstated by apprommately $1,054,000.
Shareholders’ equity was understated by approximately $1,462,000, $2,531,000 and $2,078,000 as of June 30, 2006,
September 30, 2005, and September 30, 2004, respectively.

The incorrect income tax expense ocCurred as a result of the following items:

+ The Company’s deferred tax assets d1d not include the expected future tax benefits for an increase in Mexico's
depreciable tax basis of fixed assets that were indexed for inflation between January 1, 1999 and June 30, 2006.

* Deferred tax assets and liabilities for the Company’s Mexican operations were not measu[rcd at the enacted tax
rates for the tax years in which they were expected to reverse between January 1, 2003 and June 30, 2006.

* A deferred tax asset was not identified or recorded for an accrued expense that became deductible for income tax
purposes in Mexico effective January 1, 2005. I

+ Deferred tax assets and liabilities derived from the Company'’s fixed assets in the United States were not
measured correctly between September 30, 2001 and September 30, 2005 as the result of clerical errors.

The following tables summarize the effects of the restatement (in thousands):

. September 30, 2005

l

|

Consolidated Balance Sheet I
I

Summary of Restatement Impacts :
|

|

Total shareholders’ equity . . ... i 254,759 2,531 257,290

Previously

(In thousands) Reported® ‘Adjustments Restated
Deferred INCOME TAXES . . .. o v ottt ittt oot s s enesnnsnns $ 254 | $(185) § 69
Total current liabilites .. ........... e 74,636 (185) 74,451
Deferred InCOme taXES ..ot r it ot i i v et i sr e a e 14,634 ! {2,521) 12,113
Total Habilitles ..o v vtit i e e e 170,758 | (2,706) 168,052
Minority interest . ........ . ... 0o e 2,269 : 175 2,444
Retained earnings . ........... ... .. i i PP 207,116 l '2,056 209,172
Accumulated other comprehensiveloss ... ... .o oo iiii L (4,038) 475 (3,563)

i

i

|
|




1
Steel Technologies
! P37

1
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004
Summary of Restatement Impacts

September 30, 2005 . September 30, 2004
Previously Previously

{In thousands, except per share amounts) Reported® Adjustments Restated  Reported™ Adjustments  Restated \
Minority interest in income ‘

of consolidated subsidiary ........ $ (655) $ (71) % (726) § (626) $§ 2 § {624) ‘
Income before income taxes . . ... ... . 50,351 (71) 50,280 54,489 2 54,491 !
Provision for income taxes .......... 16,935 (467} 16,468 20,015 (165) 19,850 ;
Income from co'ntinuing operations . . . 33,416 396 33,812 34,474 167 34,641
Netincome ..................... 36,313 396 36,709 35,206 167 35,373 ;
Diluted earnings per common share:

From continuing operations ... ... $ 255 8003 § 258 § 299  §0.01 s 3.00 ‘

From discontinued operations . . . . . 0.22 - 0.22 0.06 = 0.06 '

$§ 277 $003 § 280 & 305 $001 3 3.07

A comparison of the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of income for each quarter of fiscal 2006
and 2005 follows:

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Quarters Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
: Summary of Restatement Impacts

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004 i
Previously Previously '

{Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts)  Reported” Adjustments Restated Reported™ Adjustments  Restated
Minority interest in income

of consolidated subsidiary ........ $ (224) § (12) % 236) ¢ (245 $ (9) % (254)
Income before income taxes . ... ..... 3,857 (12) 3,845 21,446 (9 21,437 _
Provision for income taxes .......... 1,092 {118) 974 7,690 (95) 7,595 '
Income from continuing operations . . . 2,765 106 2,871 13,756 86 13,842 ‘
Netincome ..................... 3,234 106 3,340 14,517 86 14,603 !
Diluted earnings per common share: J

From continuing operations ...... $§ 021 $001 022 % 1.05 $001 8§ 1.06

From discontinued operations .. . .. 0.04 - 0.04 0.06 - A 0.06

$ 025 8001 § 026 § 111 3001 § 1.12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the Quarters Ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Summary of Restatement Impacts

March 31, 2006

|
March 31, 2005

« Previously Previously
(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts). | Reported  Adjustments Restated ~ Reported™ Adjustments Restated
Minority interest in income | -
of consolidated subsidiary ........ $ (142) § 10 § (132) $ (254) |$ (64) 8 (318)
Income before income taxes .. ....... 3,104 10 3,114 20,843 (64) 20,779
Provision for income taxes .. ........ 776 © 98 874 6,566 (641) 5,925
Income "from continuing operations . . . 2,328 (88) 2,240 14,277 577 14,854
Netincome .........oovvveeeennn 2,973 (88) 2,885 15,354 577 15,931
Diluted earnings per common share:
From continuing operations ...... '$ 018 $(001) 8 017 & 109 (%004 5 113
From discontinued operations . . . .. ; 0.05 - 0.05 0.08 - 0.08
I $ 023 s(0 01) g . 022 % 117 1§004 § 1.22
) Consohdated Statements of Income
For thc Quarters Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
Summarv of Restatcmcnt Impacts

s
|

June 30 2006

June 30, 2005

' Previously

Previously !

(Unaudited, in \ thousands, except pec share amounts): Reported @ Adjustments Restated  Reported” Adjustments Restated

Minority interest in income .

i
of consolidated subsidiary ........: § (507) § tog ¢ (411) 8 (87) 18 2 $ (85)
Income before income taxes . ........ . 8,726 96 8,822 7,758 i 2 7,760
Provision for income taxes .......... ' 2,045 1,168 3,213 2,730 | 18 2,748
Income from continuing operations . . . 6,681  (1,072)° 5,609 5,028 E (16) 5,012
Netincome .........iveennnnnnn | 6,577 (1,972) 5,505 5,671 | (16) 5,655
Diluted earnings per common share: *
From continuing operations ...... . $ 051 $(08 $§ 043 8§ 038 |§ - $ 038
From discontinued operations . .. .. ‘ (0.01) o= (0.01) 0.05 . - 0.05
¢ 8§ 050 § (0.08) $ 042 § 043 .8 - $ 043
5 |
Consolidated Statements of Income '
For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2005 |
. Summary of Restatement Impacts i
i ; Previously

(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts)

Reported® Adjustments Restated

Minority interest in income of consohdated subsxd1ary ................ § ©9)i$ - 8 (69)
Income before income taxes ........ e Fe e 304 - 304
Provision for income taxes . .......... e e (51) i 251 200
Income from continuing operatxons e e e 355 | (251) 104
NELINCOMIE « o v ottt et e e e e e e ettt e et aeanaaaane s 771 ¢ (251) 520
i I
Diluted earnings per common share: ‘ |
From continuing operations .............co0oa... R § 0.03 8 (002) $ 0.01
From discontinued operations . . . A e 0.03 - 0.03
3 0.06 l § (0.02) 8 0.04

The Company has also restated its consolidated statements of cash flows for the years cnded September 30, 2005
and 2004 to report changes in bank overdrafts as financing activities. Prewously, the Company had incorrectly
reported the changes in bank overdrafis as operating cash ﬂows The impact on the consolidated statements of

cash flows follows: ! . i

i
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Notes to the ;Consolidatéd Financial Statements ' : l

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

Summary of Restatement Impacts

" 4’ Previously ‘ Previously
- I (In thousands) l Reported™ Adjustments Restated  Reported™ Adjustments Restated

|

. 1

September 30, 2005 September 30, 2004 ‘
|

Increase (decrease} in cash resulting
from changes in accounts payable .. § (31,911) §5247 §(26,664) $ 41,638 § (2,171) § 39,467
Net cash provided by (used in)

: operatmg actmtles ............. 79,221 5,247 84,468 (43,028} (2,171) (45,199
| Change in bankloverdrafts .......... . - {5247) (5,247) - 2,171 2,17
! Net cash (used m) provided by
! financing activities .. ............ (36,263) ° (5,247) (41,510) 59,547 2,171 61,718 ‘
Net increase {decrease) in cash : - :
and cash equivalents ............ 28,718 - 28,718 (485) - (485)

In addition to the items d15cussed above, the Company has reclassified its income statement presentation of equity
in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net and minority interest in income of its Mexican subsidiary. The Company
previously reportéd equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net as a component of operating income; this

. amount has now been reclassified to income before taxes. Also, the Company previously reported its minority interest
- in income of its Mexican operations as a component of cost of goods sold; this amount has now been reclassified as a
separate line item In income before taxes, The impact on the consolidated statements of income follows:

‘ : Consolidated Statements of Income
P For the Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

Summary of Reclassification Impacts

: September 30, 2005 September 30, 2004
S . Previously Previously
! (In thousands) Reported™”  Reclass  Amount  Reported”® Reclass ~ Amount
Costof goods sold ............ ... $872463 § (726) § 871,737 $676,930 § (624) & 676,306
Grossprofit ..................... 85,276 726 86,002 - 88,364 624 88,988
. Operating income ................ 53,912 (4,211) 49,701 57,589 (2,228) 55,361 i
+ Minority interest in income of - i
, consolidated subsidiary .......... - (726) (726) - (624) {624)
i Equity in net income of \
X unconsolidated affiliates, net . ... .. 4,937 - 4,937 2,852 - 2,852 ]
- Income before income taxes ........ 150,280 - 50,280 54,491 - 54,491 !

Finally, the Company reclassified minority interest on the consolidated balance sheets from other long-term
. liabilities. The impact on the consolidated balance sheet follows:

Consolidated Balance Sheet
September 30, 2005
Summary of Reclassification Impacts

Restated before

‘ {In thousands) . Reclass® Reclass Restated !

‘ i

Other long-term liabilities . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. .. $ 3,932 $(2,444) § 1,488 )
N Totalliabilities ... ..o e e e 170,496 (2,444) 168,052
\Minority interest ............ e - 2,444 2,444

«+ (1) Previously reported amounts include Custom Steel accounted for as a discontinued operation.
{2) Prev'iou&ly\lf:potted amounts include effect of restatement discussed above.
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements and Other Information

' |
Our management is responsible for the preparation, presentation, and integrity of the consolidated financial
statements and other information presented in this Annual|Report. The consolidated financial statements were
prepared in conformity with accountmg Iprmuples genera]ly accepted in the United States of America, including
amounts based on management’s best esnmates and judgments. In management’s opinion, the consolidated
financial statements fairly present the Companys financial posmon results of operations and cash flows. All other
financial information in this report has Been presented on a basis consistent with the informlation included in the
consolidated financial statements.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which'is composed of independent directors, meets
regularly with the independent reglstered public accountmg firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, and
representatlves of management to review accountmg, mtcrnal control structure, and ﬁnanm.ﬂ rcportmg matters.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has full and free access to the Audit Committee. As set forth in our Code of
Business Conduct, we are firmly committed to adhering to the highest standards of moral and ethical behaviors in
all of our business activities. - ) .
[

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting '
' !

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting,
as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our internal control over financial
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regardmg the reliability of financial reportmg and the
preparation of financial statements for ekternal purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. i

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. :

The Company completed an acquisition of Kasle Steel Corporation (Kasle Steel) durmg 2006 that was excluded
from management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006. Kasle Steel
constituted approximately 4.6% of consolidated net assets and 1.2% of consolidated sales for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006. ‘

Under our supervision, and with the participation of management, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework and criteria in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that the Company’s internal contro! over financial
reporting was cffective as of September 30, 2006. .

Management’s assessment of the-effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2006 and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, who also audited the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, as stated in their report which appears on pages 41-42.

v

Bradford T. Ray '
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

K, O Hoerr

Roger D. Shannon
Chief Financial Officer

e — o
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Steel Technologies Inc. |

We have completed integrated audits of Steel Technologies Inc.’s 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, and an audit of its 2004
_ consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
=~ . Board {(United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of |
income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows, present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Steel Technologies Inc. and its subsidiaries at September 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results of
their operanons and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2006 in
conformity w1th 'accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with .
the standards ofithe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that i
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of ‘
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial {
Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” on October 1, 2005 using the modified prospective i

transition method.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated its 2005 and 2004
consolidated financial statements.

Internal control over f tancial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting appearing on page 40 of the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006 based on criteria established
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway :
Commission (COSQY), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September
30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its 4
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, Qur responsibility is to express opinions
on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the '
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment,
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other

procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinions. '
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1 . ]

Report of Independent Registefec:l Public Accoun'ting Firm {continued) |

| t
' !
.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepatation of financial statements for|external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in Ireasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dlsposmons of the assets of the company; (u) prov1cle reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recc1pts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and d1rectors of the company; and (iii} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely \detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, mternnl control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any dvaluation of effecnveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in condmons or that the degree of comphancc with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. :

As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has excluded
Kasle Steel Corporation (Kasle Steel) fro'm its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2006 because it was acqulrcd by the Company in a purchase business combmanon during fiscal
2006. We have also excluded Kasle Steel from our audit ofiinternal control over financial reportmg Kasle Steel is
a wholly owned subsidiary whose total asiscts and total sales represent 4.6% and 1.2%, respectively, of the related
consolidated financial statement amount? as of and for the year ended September 30, 2006.

|
]

PrisorntedeseLorpusas 11LP K
i
Louisville, Kentucky . !
December 14, 2006 ‘ ;
g
1
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 2006, our debt is comprised of variable-rate borrowings under our line of credit facility,
$50,000,000 in unsecured senior notes with a weighted average fixed interest rate of 5.67% and $4,444,000 in
. notes for former shareholders of Kasle Steel with a weighted average fixed interest rate of 7.31%. As of September
—— 30, 2006, there was $64,000,000 outstanding on the line of credit facility at a weighted average interest rate of
6.92%. Accordingly, we are exposed to market risks related to changes in interest rates. We continually monitor
these risks and develop appropriate strategies to manage them. Accordingly, from time to time, we may enter into
certain derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate exposures. We do not enter into derivative financial
instrument transactions for speculative purposes.
In order to n!iitigate a portion of the market risk on its variable rate debt, the Company entered into an interest
i rate swap contrict with major financial institutions on June 20, 2005. The interest rate swap contract began
. December 8, 2005 Under the terms of the contract, which matures in September 2008, the Company will receive a
*  LIBOR based vanablc interest rate (5.39% as of September 30, 2006} and pay a fixed interest rate of 4.31% on a
notional amount of $30,000,000. The variable interest rate paid on the contracts is determined based on LIBOR on
the last day of the applicable borrowing period, which is consistent with the variable rate determination on the
" underlying debt
The followmg table summarizes principal cash flows of the Company’s long-term debt, interest expense and
interest rate swaps at September 30, 2006 by expected maturity dates. Interest expense below includes the
estimated contr‘actual interest payments under our debt agreements net of the effect of the associated interest rate
swap agreement assuming no change in the variable LIBOR rate or amounts outstanding under our existing debt
agreements as of September 30, 2006.

|
|
|
%
i

. Foreign Currency Risk :

| The translation of the assets and liabilities of our Mexican subsidiary from their local currencies to the U.S.

dollar subjects us to exposure related to fluctuating exchange rates. We do not use any derivative instruments to

manage this risk.

! Our Mexican subsidiary uses the peso as the functional currency and the assets and liabilities of our Mexican

- subsidiary are translated into U.S. dollars at the year-end rate of exchange. Resulting translation adjustments were

» ($15,000), $2,0: 78 ;000 and (8936,000) during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and are reported in

" comprehensive income. A stronger exchange rate of the peso relative to the U.S. dollar of 1% at September 30,

. 2006 would result in additional comprehensive income of approximately $60,000. Likewise, a weaker exchange

I rate of the pesorelative to the U.S. dollar of 1% at September 30, 2006 would result in addltlonal comprehensive
loss of approximately $60,000.

However, this exposure is mitigated somewhat by a large percentage of transactions denominated in the U.S.
dollar. The effec_t of the change in the exchange rate from the date a transaction is initiated until the date a
transaction is settled with a cash receipt or cash payment is recorded as a transaction gain or loss in our financial
statements. Fore1gn currency transaction gains (logses) are included in sales when incurred and were $476,000,
($855,000) and 3468 000 for the fiscal years ending 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. A stronger average
exchange rate of the peso durmg fiscal 2006 relative to the U.S. dollar of 1% would result in additional foreign
currency transaction losses of approximately $2,600,000. Likewise, a weaker average exchange rate of the peso
durmg fiscal 2006 relative to the U.S. dollar of 1% would result in additional foreign currency transaction gains of

apprommately $2,600,000.

|

: . Fair i
' : ) Market !
&1 thousands, except for interest rates) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total Value |
Long-term debt?(ﬁxed) ...... $ 776 3 731 $ 755 $ 781 % 333 § 51,136 $ 54,512 $54,518 5

. Long-term debti{variable) ... - - - - 64,000 - 64,000 64,000 '
* Interest expense . ........... 7,262 7,580 7,586 7,491 3,124 7,774 40,817 n/a l
© Interestrateswap .......... 204 188 -~ - - - 392 392 ‘
‘ i

|

|

|
|
|
|
!
|
|
i
i
i
|
|
|
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Office |

Steel Technologies Inc.
15415 Shelbyville Road
Louisville, Kentucky 40245
{502) 245-2110

Company Website
www.steeltechnologies.com

Transfer Agent
National City Bank
Cleveland, Ohio

To change namte, address, ownership or
stock, to report a lost dividend check or lost
stock certificate, to consolidate accounts, or
for other inquiries, please contact National
City Bank Shareholder Services directly at:

P. O. Box 92301

Cleveland, Ohio 44193-0900
(800) 622-6757

{216) 257-8508 fax

Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Louisvilte, Kentucky

Form 10-K

Information about Steel Technologies Inc.,
including the Form 10-K, may be obtained
by writing to Mr. Roger D. Shannon, Chief
Financial Officer, at the Company's

corporate office. In addition, the Company

makes available free of charge through its
website at www.steeltechnologies.com annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and all amendments’to those reports filed
with or furnished to the SEC. The reports
are available as soon as reasonably practical
after the Company electronically files such
material with the SEC, and may be found
under SEC Filings in the Investor Relations
section of the Company’s website.

- Annual Meeting
. 9:00 a.m. EST

January 25, 2007
Corporate Office

Steel Technologies Inc.
15415 Shelbyville Road
Louisville, Kentucky
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